
ABABABAB    
CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 10 JUNE 2013 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

1. Apologies for absence 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration. 
 
 

 

3. Minutes of Meeting held on 22 April 2013 
 

3 - 8 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

 The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commissions.  If a request for call-in of a decision is received, 
implementation of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee or Commission. 
 

 

5. The Impact of Welfare Reform 
 

9 - 16 

6. Children's Play Services 
 

17 - 30 

7. Children's Services Improvement Programme 
 

31 - 62 

8. Children's Services Improvement Programme Scrutiny Task And 
Finish Group - Progress Report 
 

63 - 64 

9. Review Of 2012/2013 And Work Programme For 2013/14 
 

65 - 76 

10. Notice of Intention to take Key Decisions 
 

77 - 88 

Public Document Pack



11. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 Monday, 22 July 2013 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible. 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: S Day (Chair), C Harper (Vice Chairman), B Rush, G Nawaz, J Shearman, 
B Saltmarsh and D Fower 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: J R Fox, M Nadeem and Thulbourn 

 
Education Co-optees: Jane Austen (Roman Catholic Church Representative), 

Miranda Robinson,(Church of England Representative), Alastair Kingsley – Co-opted Member,  
Tricia Pritchard, (Director of Education & Training), Diocese of Ely 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



  

AB 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD IN THE 
BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH 

ON 22 APRIL 2013 
 

Present: Councillors  S Day (Chairman), Harper, N Arculus, B Rush, B Saltmarsh,  
J Shearman, D Fower 
 

Also present Alastair Kingsley 
Councillor J Holdich 
 

Parent Governor Representative 
Cabinet Member for Education, Skills & University  
 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

Sue Westcott 
Jonathan Lewis 
Paulina Ford 
Marie Southgate 
  

Executive Director, Children’s Services 
Assistant Director for Education and Resources 
Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny    
Lawyer 
 

 
1. Apologies 

 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 
Councillor Saltmarsh declared that she was a Member of the Peterborough Referral Unit 
(PRU) Management team.  

 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2013 
 

The minutes of the meetings held on 11 March 2013 were approved as an accurate record.  
       

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

There were no requests for Call-in to consider. 
 

5. Appointment of a Co-opted Member 
 
The purpose of the report was to request that the Committee consider retaining Alistair 
Kingsley as a co-opted Member to the Committee.    Members were informed that Alistair 
Kingsley became a co-opted member of the Committee as a Parent Governor Representative 
in May 2010, his term of office had been for three years which was due to end in May 2013.  
Alistair would be unable to continue for another three years as his role as Parent Governor 
had changed and was therefore no longer eligible to be co-opted to the Committee as a 
Parent Governor Representative.   In accordance with the Constitution Part 4, Section 9 – 
Scrutiny Committee and Scrutiny Commission Procedure Rules, paragraph 3 the Committee 
shall be entitled to co-opt, as non-voting members, external representatives or otherwise invite 
participation from non-members where this is relevant to their work.   Members were informed 
that Alistair Kingsley had been an active and valuable member of the Committee providing 
effective and challenging scrutiny at all meetings. 
 
Members were also informed that the two vacancies on the Committee for Parent Governor 
Representatives had been advertised by the Governor Services Team but no one had applied 
and therefore the positions remained vacant.  Members were concerned that the vacancies 

3



  

remained open and requested that the Assistant Director for Education and Resources 
actively sought suitable candidates to fill the vacancies. 
 
The Committee considered the request and agreed to retain Alistair Kingsley as a Co-opted 
Member of the Committee with no voting rights.  The position to be reviewed on an annual 
basis.   
 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee agreed: 
 
1. To retain Alistair Kingsley as a Co-opted Member of the Committee with no voting rights 

and that this arrangement be reviewed on an annual basis. 
 
2. That the Assistant Director for Education and Resources take action to actively market 

and fill the Parent Governor vacancies as Education co-opted members of the Committee. 
 

6. The Vision for Education in Peterborough 
 
The purpose of the report was to consult the Committee on the proposed draft Education 
vision for Peterborough in light of the changes at national level around the increasing role of 
school self-improvement and the new roles of local authorities in supporting education.   
 
In November 2010, the Department for Education published the schools White Paper ‘The 
Importance of Teaching’, which had set out a radical reform programme for the schools 
system with the inference that schools would be freed from the constraints of central 
Government direction and teachers placed firmly at the heart of school improvement.  
Changes in the education system provided a new Education Act in 2011 and the key 
implications had been: 
 

• An increase in the number of Academies and Free Schools 

• Local Authorities seeing significant funding reductions including grants and in school 
improvement services  

• Floor standards for schools being raised  

• The revised Ofsted framework increasing pressure on schools with satisfactory 
schools now becoming “requires improvement” 

• A requirement for low performing schools to join Academy chains and the 
encouragement of Academy led federations 

• School-led school improvement replacing top-down initiatives. 
 
The key roles for Peterborough as a Local Authority for education in the future will be as 
advocate for parents and children in which the LA:  
 

1. Support parents and families through promoting a good supply of strong schools – 
encouraging the development of Academies and Free Schools which reflected the 
local community and ensuring outstanding maintained schools.   

2. Ensure fair access to all schools for every child through providing sufficient school 
places and a range of different schools to support the community. 

3. Use their democratic mandate to stand up for the interests of parents and children.  
4. Support vulnerable pupils including Looked After Children, those with Special 

Educational Needs and those outside mainstream education.  
5. Support maintained schools performing below the floor standards to improve quickly or 

convert to Academy status with a strong sponsor, and support all other schools which 
wish to collaborate with them to improve educational performance.  Likewise work with 
academy governors to ensure all schools exceed the government floor targets on 
standards and progress.    

4



  

6. Support schools to develop their own school improvement strategies and work 
between schools within the city and traded with those schools outside of the area. 

 
Members were informed that the overall performance in Peterborough had not been good, the 
population continued to grow and was becoming more ethnically diverse.  The LA had now 
become the Strategic Commissioner and the biggest challenge was the change in relationship 
between the LA and schools.  Schools now had to take responsibility for their improvement 
but the Education Act 1996 firmly placed responsibility of outcomes for education of all 
children with the LA.    There was now a need to get better value for money and not provide all 
services but focus on some.  A key role for the LA was to provide education data and 
intelligence. 
 
A recent review of the current services delivered by the LA had put them into three 
categories’:  
 

• Retained – those services / activities that were either statutory and needed to remain 
within Children’s Services or those services which were considered to be of high 
importance to the organisation.  

• School-to-School Support Partnership  / Devolved to Schools – services that over time 
could be devolved / commissioned to the school to school partnership for the wider 
benefit of schools.  There was emerging evidence that effective school-to-school 
collaboration was central to whole system improvement strategies, it was also a 
responsibility of local authorities to take the initiative in promoting them.  A model for 
developing School to School support was included in the report which put schools into 
clusters both in secondary and primary schools.  The schools would work together to 
discuss and resolve issues. 

• Potential Areas for External Commissioning / Trading – these were areas which intend 
to be retained but further work would be undertaken to see whether these could be 
externalised or be expanded to operate on a trading basis.   

 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members agreed that the Education Strategy was a move in the right direction but were 
concerned about the speed with which the change might happen.  Members were advised 
that some parts of the strategy were already in place or being developed.  Other services 
would not be needed going forward.  Quality assurance would be the key to 
commissioning services going forward. 

• Members wanted to know what would happen if services were outsourced and the 
proposed strategy did not work.  Members were advised that if the strategy were to be 
implemented the low profile services would go first and the high profile services last.  
There would be a need to sell to schools that Peterborough would perform better with a 
school-to-school partnership working together.  Peterborough already had a school-to-
school partnership working of which the majority of schools were members.  The 
Peterborough Learning Partnership was originally formed in 2002.  Other Local Authorities 
had stripped out their resources and devolved responsibility to schools and by doing this it 
had proved that the schools have been driven to work together and share best practice. 

• Members commented that they had thought best practice was already being shared 
across schools.  Members were advised that this was the case but on an ad hoc basis and 
was reliant on individual Heads knowing where to go for the best practice.  The school-to-
school partnership model brought knowledge and best practice to a single forum and 
passed it on to others. 

• Is the Peterborough Learning Partnership (PLP) set up as a charitable trust and did the 
model include reaching out to other authority public schools and independent schools.  
Members were advised that the PLP would be set up as a charitable trust and its model 
had reached across borders and had expertise built in from elsewhere.  It also had the 
capacity to include independent schools.  An example of this was Oundle School who had 
worked with Thomas Deacon Academy.  

5



  

• Not all schools were obliged to join the PLP.  How can you therefore ensure the model will 
work?  Members were informed that the role of the LA was to encourage schools to join 
the PLP and to help the PLP to develop. The Assistant Director for Education and 
Resources advised that he would be visiting schools and asking them why they had not 
joined the PLP and what they would want from the PLP to encourage them to join.  All 
schools did already access something from the PLP and they did not have to be a 
subscribing member to attend conferences.   

• Members sought clarification between the Peterborough Learning Partnership and the 
Primary School Improvement Board.  Members were advised that they were primarily the 
same thing.  The Primary School Improvement Board asked the PLP to commission 
pieces of work for them. 

• Who funds both the Secondary and Primary School Improvement Boards?  Members were 
advised that there was £500,000 in the school improvement pot which had been top sliced 
from the schools budget and the Local Authority would also contribute to this.  However it 
was the decision of the Schools Forum whether the money would be spent on this 
strategy. 

• What would happen if the Head of a successful school left and the school started to 
decline? Could the LA intervene?  Members were informed that the LA was still 
accountable for improving education outcomes and could intervene at anytime.  The LA 
used data to see how schools were performing and looked at other issues like staff 
leaving, children not going to school in catchment and any other areas of concern.  The 
aim was to make all schools within the Local Authority outstanding. 

• Councillor Holdich thanked the Committee for their input into the strategy. 
 
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director for Education and Resources for his report and 
requested that the Members working with the Assistant Director for Education and Resources 
to develop the Vision for Education in Peterborough continue to do so. 
 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee requested that: 
 
1. A further update report on the Vision for Education in Peterborough to be brought back to 

the Committee in September. 
2. A report covering a summary of Ofsted visits to schools to be provided to the Committee 

on a monthly basis. 
3. The Member working group to continue to work with the Assistant Director for Education 

and Resources on the Vision for Education in Peterborough. 
 

7. Draft School Organisation Plan 2013-2018 – Delivering Local Places for Local Children 
 

The purpose of the report was to outline to the Committee the proposal for meeting the 
statutory requirement for school places in Peterborough.  The report drew together the latest 
demographic data, the capital programme and identified the need for further school places.   
The School Organisation Plan had previously been a statutory requirement for Local 
Authorities but was no longer a requirement.  Given the demand for school places in 
Peterborough the plan had been revived to support the planning and transparency of school 
places in Peterborough.  The Assistant Director for Education and Resources gave an 
overview of the School Organisation Plan to the Committee highlighting the scope of the plan, 
the current position and processes of school place planning.  The document had been shared 
with schools and had received positive feedback. 
 

 Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members commented that it was an excellent in-depth report giving a consolidated picture 
and a positive step forward for school place planning. 

6



  

• Members commented and discussed issues relating to schools in their wards including the 
development of the old Peterborough District Hospital site and a new primary school within 
the new development, the two schools at Dogsthorpe becoming one primary school and 
the conversion of St Georges School to a single entry primary school. 

• The Assistant Director for Education and Resources informed Members that in the past 
there had been some disconnect between planning and development for the growth of the 
city and the requirement for school places.  The School Organisation Plan would be a live 
document that would help to show at any time where pressures for school places were 
and would be used in conjunction with planning documents to help planners and 
developers prior to deciding on new developments.  Future new school buildings would be 
built to try and future proof for growth to allow for expansion if required. 

• Members sought assurance that lessons had been learnt from the Hampton development 
and that negotiations with developers would ensure that land would be made available for 
any new schools much sooner than had previously been.  Members were advised that this 
was the case and it was in the developer’s interest to get the infrastructure in place 
sooner.  Schools were an integral part of attracting people to new developments. 

• The Thomas Deacon Academy (TDA) had an admission policy that was totally different 
from any other secondary schools in the city.  Members wanted to know if the TDA 
admission policy were to change and become similar to the other secondary schools 
would that relieve the pressure of school places.  Members were advised that the TDA set 
up in 2007 and at that stage signed a funding agreement with the DfE which lasted for 
seven years and was due to expire in August 2014.  Within the contract was the 
agreement that the school use ‘fair banding’ as its admission criteria.  There would be an 
opportunity to review the process when the agreement ended.  When the new Head is 
appointed the LA would discuss the possibility of changing the admission criteria.  If the 
change were to be agreed it may help to relieve pressures around some of the 
geographical issues within the city but would not help with school places overall. 

• Members requested that more detail be provided for schemes mentioned in the plan that 
were going to happen imminently. 

• The Assistant Director for Education and Resources advised Members that the School 
Organisation Plan 2013-2018 would be a live document and would be refreshed annually. 

 

ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report and School Organisation Plan 2013-2018 and requested that 
the Plan be brought back to the Committee when it is refreshed on one year’s time. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 8.55pm    CHAIRMAN 
 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

10 JUNE 2013 Public Report 
 

Report of the Head of Neighbourhood Services  
 
Contact Officer(s) – Leonie McCarthy, Social Inclusion Manager 
Contact Details -  01733 864308 
 

THE IMPACT OF WELFARE REFORM 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
To inform the Committee of the impacts of Welfare Reform and the work being undertaken 
through the Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme to tackle poverty and destitution 

   
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
To review the programmes of work identified to tackle poverty and endorse or make 
recommendations for amendments and/or additions. 

  
3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

 

• Creating Stronger and Safer Communities by making Peterborough Safer and 
empowering local communities 

 

• Creating Opportunity, Tackling Inequality by supporting vulnerable people, improving 
skills, education and health 

 

• Delivering Substantial and truly sustainable growth by increasing economic prosperity. 
 

  
4. BACKGROUND 

 
In 2012 the Welfare Reform Act was introduced to the UK. This was the biggest reform of social 
security in 60 years. 
 
The reform of the welfare system was designed to deliver £18billion savings nationally initially, 
with a further £10billion thereafter.  
 
The aims were also to make the system of benefits and tax credits fairer and simpler, create 
incentives to get more people into work by ensuring that ‘work always pays’, protect the most 
vulnerable in our society and deliver fairness to those claiming benefit and to the tax payer. 
 
The changes for Peterborough include  
 

• Council Tax Benefit (c8,000 households now paying for the first time) 

• Under occupancy rules (1,737 households will be unable to meet their rents through 
housing benefit payment) 

• Social Fund and Community Care Grants (£1.2m removed in grants and loans, but 
replaced with Local Welfare Provision) 

• Benefit Cap (expected to affect c200 households in Peterborough from July 2013) 
 
There are also some major infrastructure changes in the way that benefits will be awarded 
including the introduction of Universal Credit in early 2014 to replace current welfare benefit 
support, the introduction of Personal Independence Payments for new claimants (October 2015 

9



for existing claims) and Employment Support Allowance (income benefit/income support – 
claims limited to one year). 
 
Total loss of direct benefit income to Peterborough as a result of welfare reform is estimated to 
be in the region of £26.20m. 
 
Our research into the impacts of welfare reform also included looking at the unintended 
consequences which we believe may include: 
 

• A reduction in High Street economy 

• Increased evictions 

• Overcrowding 

• Increased acquisitive crime and shoplifting 

• Domestic Abuse 

• Loan sharks 

• Substance misuse 

• Mental and Public Health issues 

• Fuel Poverty 
 

  
5. KEY ISSUES 

 
In replacement of the £1.2m social fund, which incorporated Crisis Loans and Community Care 
Grants, Peterborough City Council was this year awarded £803,904 to tackle poverty and 
destitution. 
 
To ensure these funds would mitigate the significant impacts of Welfare Reform, a group of 
strategic partners from the voluntary, private and statutory sector, working on issues to tackle 
poverty, were brought together to form a Welfare Reform Steering Group. 
 
The purpose of this group is to: 
 

• Provide a strategic overview of future welfare changes and implications 

• Oversee delivery of a Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme (PCAS) and any 
emerging trends/issues 

• Understand the impact of Universal Credit and other welfare changes and to provide the 
necessary support and resources to enable a smooth transition for affected clients in 
Peterborough 

 
Through research and wider consultation the group have agreed an action plan to provide the 
following outcomes for Peterborough: 
 

• Maximisation of Income 

• Reduction of debt 

• Crisis intervention 
 
To ensure delivery of these outcomes the Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme 
(PCAS) was set up to provide: 
 

• Peterborough’s first Credit Union (managed by Rainbow Saver Credit Union) 

• A basic needs facility for furniture, white goods and general crisis provision (managed 
by Carezone, Kingsgate) 

• A specialist voluntary information and advice network (incorporating Age UK, Citizens 
Advice Bureau, Disability Information and Advice Line, Peterborough Council for 
Voluntary Service and Peterborough and Fenland MIND) 

• Peterborough’s first citywide Foodbank with 6 outlets to date (led by Kingsgate Church) 
 

 

10



The first three months of the programme are to ascertain the need of clients and the level of 
resources required going forward. The majority of clients eligible for PCAS assistance  have 
been referred directly from the Department of Work of Pensions to the Citizens Advice Bureau 
for screening and advice. This enables the scheme to ensure that those most in need and 
eligible for support are assisted to maximise income and reduce debt.  A breakdown of the 
clients who accessed the service in April 2013 is illustrated in the following graphs: 
 

1

75

171

224

119

24

8

0

50

100

150

200

250

0-16 17-24 25-34 35-49 50-64 65+ Not

Recorded

PCAS Clients - Ages

 
 

PCAS Clients - Ethnicity

2% 5% 3% 5%
1%

2%1%0%0%0%

50%

27%

4% 0%

Asian or Asian British - Indian Asian or Asian British - Other

Asian or Asian British - Pakistani Black or Black British - African

Black or Black British - Caribbean Black or Black British - Other

Mixed - Other Mixed - White & Asian

Mixed - White & Black African Mixed - White & Black Caribbean

White - British White - Other

Other Unknown or Declined to reply

 
 

11



38

8

100

44

70

9

36

3

23

32

42

36

28

37

21

7
11

6

21

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Ward

PCAS Clients - by Ward Bretton North

Bretton South

Central

Dogsthorpe

East

Eye and Thorney

Fletton

Newborough

North

Orton Longueville

Orton with Hampton

Park

Paston

Ravensthorpe

Stanground Central

Walton

Werrington North

Werrington South

West
 

 
Where appropriate a voucher system enables clients to access basic needs – food, beds, 
clothing, heating, essential household items, furniture, white goods, etc.  
 
If clients are assessed to require specialist information and advice, i.e disability, mental health, 
volunteering opportunities etc, they are referred to the relevant PCAS advice agencies. 
 
Data is collected at all points of contact with clients to ascertain trends and issues, including 
information relating to Equality and Diversity. 
 
During phase one work will be undertaken to provide a City Centre Hub which will be a one stop 
service for the PCAS scheme. The hub will also incorporate access to employment 
opportunities, volunteering, business start up, information and advice, fuel poverty initiatives, 
financial management and budgeting training, ICT access and training. 
 
There will also be a roll out of basic benefits and debt training for community based agencies 
and groups to provide early intervention and support to local residents and communities 
affected by welfare reform. 
 
During the coming months we will deliver a Rogue Traders Action Plan and Tackling Illegal 
Money Lenders action plan. 
 

  
6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
We are exploring methods to measure the performance of our work which will include: 
 

• Reduction of clients returning after early intervention 

• No of clients securing voluntary, business start up or employment opportunities 

• No’s of individuals and community groups trained in basic advice support 

• No’ s of clients joining the credit union and undertaking money management training 

• Decrease in basic needs provision 

• Increase in skills development course completions 

• Reduction in rough sleepers and destitution 

• Increase of rogue traders and illegal money lenders fined or imprisoned 

• Increase in private organisations committed to support the work of PCAS 

• Increased befriending and neighbourhood support schemes 
 

12



  
7. CONSULTATION 

 
Consultation on this work has been developed from the Tackling Poverty consultation which 
has been undertaken over the past 2 years. Groups involved in the consultation are below: 
 

Accent Nene MIND 

Age UK Peterborough New Hope Charity UK 

Axiom Housing Association Peterborough Primary Care Trust 

Barnardos Peterborough Citizen’s Advice Bureau 

Birmingham City Council Peterborough Council for Voluntary Service 

CHS group Peterborough Environment City Trust 

Circle Anglia Peterborough British Red Cross 

City College Peterborough Peterborough RePaint Scheme 

Cross Keys Homes Peterborough Streets 

Department of Work and Pensions Rainbow Saver Anglia Credit Union 

DIAL Peterborough Salvation Army 

Cambridgeshire Re-Use and Recycle 
Network CCORN 

Serco 

Faith and Communities Network Social Finance Group 

Greater Peterborough Partnership Sodexho Justice Services 

St Giles Trust Spurgeons 

Home Group  

Hyde Housing  

Kingsgate Community Church   

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

• The PCAS steering group will now explore the options for a central one stop service.  

• An overarching Poverty Strategy to incorporate the work of PCAS is being developed. 

• Data sharing, research and intelligence gathering protocols will be expanded across 
relevant agencies.  

• Monthly performance management reports on outcomes achieved will be shared among 
partners.   

• Networking and good practice sharing with authorities across the UK 
 

  
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
None 
 

  
10. APPENDICES 

 

 PCAS Briefing document 
 

 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme 

Changes to the Social Fund and Community Care grants 

What is happening?

From 1 April 2013, the Social Fund and Crisis Loans will cease. This means that the Department of Work and 

Pensions (DWP) will no longer be providing money to deal with emergency situations.  A scheme is being 

established to support people facing hardship and requiring urgent assistance; this is called the Peterborough 

Community Assistance Scheme (PCAS)

What is the Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme?

The Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme (PCAS) can help people going through unexpected 

difficulties who require urgent assistance. The scheme aims to help you meet your basic needs as quickly as 

possible and will provide you with the support and advice to help you avoid similar problems in the future.

Who can Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme help?

• You must be over 16 years of age

• You must be on means tested benefits

• You must be facing hardship or dealing with an emergency situation

• You must be registered for council tax in the Peterborough council area

• If you are not in receipt of benefit payments, we may still be able to help you if you are experiencing    

exceptional difficulties

What help is available?

We can help you in the following ways:

• By providing emergency food 

• By providing emergency furniture or other basic needs such as a pram, clothing, toys or household items

• One off emergency heating or lighting payment 

• Emergency electrical appliances such as a fridge, microwave, toaster or kettle

• Debt advice

• Helping you to manage your money better

• Banking and saving with Rainbow Saver Credit Union

• Housing and employment advice

If you are provided with help and support through PCAS, please be aware that we will share your information 

with other partner agencies in order to signpost you to the appropriate organisations for further long term 

support.

Where do I go for help?

• Emergency food and furniture are provided through a voucher system issued by a  number of different 

agencies in the city.  Please contact one of the agencies listed on the reverse of this leaflet for further 

information.

• For advice around debt, housing, employment, emergency heating/lighting, emergency electrical appliances  

or for any general enquiries, please contact Citizens Advice Bureau on pcas@peterboroughcab.org.uk

0844 4994120 or in person at 16-17 St Marks Street, Peterborough PE1 2TU.

15



Who can help with referrals for emergency food or furniture?

Cross Keys Homes 01733 385000

Accent Nene Housing 01733 295400

Axiom Housing 01733 347135

(If you are a tenant of one of the above landlords)

Citizens Advice Bureau 0844 4994120

Peterborough City Council 01733 747474

British Red Cross 01733 557472

Aspire Drug Treatment Service 0800 1114354

Drinksense 01733 555532

Women’s Aid 01733 894455

Other useful contacts

Rainbow Saver (for advice around budgeting and saving)

3 Cattlemarket Road, Peterborough, PE1 1TW

Peterborough and Fenland Mind (advice and support for people 

with mental health issues)  01733 758211

Dial Peterborough (advice and support for people with 

physical disabilities) 01733 265551

Age UK – (advice and support for people aged over 55) 01733 564185

Care and Repair (an agency which assists disabled, aged and

vulnerable people to access funding for work in their home)  01733 863895

Department for Work and Pensions (for information on job 

seekers allowance and other benefits) 0845 6088603

Connexions (for information and advice aimed at young 

people up to 19 year olds) 01733 864500

16



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

10 JUNE 2013 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services                               
 
Contact Officer(s) – Wendi Ogle-Welbourn 
Contact Details – Tel: 863749 
 

CHILDREN’S PLAY SERVICES 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This report provides an update on the progress relating to the development of alternative play 

provision. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 For the Committee to consider the progress report on the development of alternative play 
provision in the city.  
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 

In March 2013 the council voted to further cut the Play Service budget. The savings required 
together with the unrealised savings identified in the 2010 Medium Term Financial Plan has 
meant that the continuation of the Play Service as a council funded offer is untenable. Play is 
not a statutory service and many authorities across the region have long since closed their play 
services. 
 
 It is recognised that the Play Centres are valuable community assets and the play activity that 
is delivered from them is of great benefit to children. It is desirable, therefore, that they remain 
as a central resource to the children, families and communities they currently serve. To that end 
Children’s Services and Neighbourhoods have been working closely to secure a sustainable 
solution for each of the eight play centres so that they can continue to deliver some form of 
alternative play focused activity. The work being undertaken, predominantly by Neighbourhoods 
staff, to achieve this has involved: 
 

• Initial meetings with potential and emerging community groups 

• Second follow up meetings with these community groups 

• Introductions to Can do Communities* 

• Can do Communities workshops with community groups to support them in the 
understanding of the asset transfer process 

 
The workshops with community groups will be completed by the end of May 2013. By that point 
decisions can be made in relation to the capacity of the individual groups to move forward with 
the transfer of the community play centres. 
 
Decisions will also be made at the beginning of June in relation to actions needed to support 
those community groups who are not yet ready to assume the responsibility for the individual 
play centres. Plans will also be put in place to secure the continued running of some or all of 
these centres where there is a current lack of local capacity. 
 
An up to date appraisal of the progress of the discussions with community groups in relation to 
the transfer of the Play Centre assets can be found in Appendix 1. 
 

17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 

*Can Do Communities is a charitable organisation that works with community groups to provide 
them with the knowledge and skills to manage the process of asset transfer. The organisation 
Can Do Communities has been procured by Neighbourhoods to work with developing 
community groups to support them in the transfer of the Play Centre assets. In supporting 
groups they will offer advice and guidance in relation to the following: 
 

Community Health Checks  Asset Transfer  Business Planning  Funding Advice  

Capacity Building  
Charitable Entity 

Options  

Charity & Company 

Law 
Community Buildings  

Community Engagement   
Community 

Participation  
Employment Issues  

Financial 

Management 

Bid Writing Governance Documents  Trustee Training  Lease Negotiation  

Knowledge Exchange Visits Marketing Lease Negotiation Charity Set Up  

Template Policy 

Development  
Skills Audits  Staff & Volunteers  

Strategy 

Development  

Income Generation   Relationship Reviews Project Management Mapping The Future 

 

Children’s Services has responsibility to support the children and members of staff during the 
period up to the closure of the council run play services. Play staff are currently in the middle of 
a consultation period which puts there jobs at risk of being made redundant. Managers are 
working hard to support play staff and to help them to find alternative solutions to compulsory 
redundancy. 
 
Children who use the play centres have been supported by staff to understand the implications 
of closure. All of the play centres have received a small amount of funding to support a 
celebratory event which marks the contribution that play has made over the years to families 
and communities in Peterborough. 
 
Protocols to support the closure process from the perspective of staff, children and buildings 
management can be found in Appendix 2. 
 
 

4. KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The eight centres are: 
 

• Chatteris Play centre,  Welland 

• Chestnuts Play centre,  Eastfield 

• Copeland Play centre, , South Bretton  

• Crofts Corner Play centre, Essendyke, Bretton 

• Paston Farm Adventure Centre,  

• Spinney Play centre, Ravensthorpe 

• Thistle Drive Play Centre, Stanground 

• Tunnel Play centre 
. 
Not all of the community groups interested in running the play centres will have the capacity to 
assume this responsibility immediately. 
 
Some of the play centres, because of the condition of the buildings, might not be viable to 
maintain long term. 
 
Work still needs to be undertaken to secure the community vision for each centre and the 
nature of the activities, specifically some for alternative play, that it is hoped will continue to be 
delivered out of these centres. 

18



5. CONCLUSIONS 
 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Since April 2013 significant work has taken place to support emerging, and also established, 
community groups to assume responsibility for the running of the play centres. Work will 
continue to support these groups to go through the legal and practical processes of asset 
transfer. Supporting community groups to have the capacity to run, operate and deliver services 
from these centres is the only way that some form of alternative play activity can continue in 
these communities. 
 
Interim management arrangements may need to be put in place to support those groups who 
are not yet ready to assume the responsibility of managing the assets. It might be necessary to 
close on a permanent basis some of the buildings due to their state of repair. 
 
The council run Play Service has been recognised as offering valuable support to families and 
communities and this has been recognised through a series of celebratory events that took 
place in play centres during the last week of May. 
 
Neighbourhoods and Children’s Services will continue to work closely together to support 
community groups to secure the continued use of the play centre buildings for the delivery of an 
alternative play based offer. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 
 
 

Continued support of the work described in this report will ensure that the Play Centres remain 
viable facilities within the individual communities in which they are located. 

7. NEXT STEPS 
 

7.1 
 

Members are requested to endorse the processes described in this report and recognise the 
progress that has been made in securing a viable future for the Play Centres. 
 

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

8.1 None 
 

9. APPENDICES 
 

9.1 Appendix 1 Play Centre Summary Review 
Appendix 2 Protocols to support the closure process 
 
 

  

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Play Centre Review 

Summary Report and Actions 

 

 

Context 

Full Council approved proposal to cease the budget for the play centre provision 

from 1
st

 April.  Children’s Services agreed to cover running costs of centres for 

further 6 months to avoid boarding up of valuable local facilities. 

 

Current play service (differs between each centre) will continue throughout April but 

all staff posts have been deleted and current play staff expect to be given notice 

period as soon as new structures are announced. 

 

Working in partnership with CAN-do Communities 

 

Independent charitable organisation working with PCC and able to provide Health 

Checks for local groups and/or Asset transfer Workshops in preparation for asset 

management.   

 

Can Do Consulting 

Our Consultancy service offers an affordable, flexible and proactive way to build 

capacity and strengthen sustainability in the Charitable Sector, specialising in the 

following areas: 

 

Community Health 

Checks  
Asset Transfer  Business Planning  Funding Advice  

Capacity Building  
Charitable Entity 

Options  

Charity & Company 

Law 

Community 

Buildings  

Community Engagement   
Community 

Participation  
Employment Issues  

Financial 

Management 

Bid Writing 
Governance 

Documents  
Trustee Training  Lease Negotiation  

Knowledge Exchange 

Visits 
Marketing Lease Negotiation Charity Set Up  

Template Policy 

Development  
Skills Audits  Staff & Volunteers  

Strategy 

Development  

Income Generation   Relationship Reviews Project Management Mapping The Future 

 

Support offered to group, at no financial risk to them to apply for funding: 

Pre-feasibility £5-10K (capita/condition surveys) 

Full feasibility £10-100k (non capital project costs) 

 

 

 

 

 

21



Appendix 1 

 

Options available for groups 

 

2 tier model: 

1. Community led group taking full management responsibility for management of 

facility, involving full repair and maintenance lease 

2. Umbrella Citywide Trust to act as holding asset manager, working closely with 

community management committee, but bearing the risk and strategy 

responsibility to shield group whilst they become established self sufficient 

 

Summary of meetings throughout March/April 

Charteris Centre 

 

In attendance: Adrian Chapman, Cate Harding, Cherry Lester, Marvin Symes, 

Graham, Cllrs Ash & Saltmarsh 

 

Acknowledged will and possibility to mobilise a community led management 

committee representative of the wider community 

 

Proposed stakeholders to engage with an invite to Health Check Review 

 

Group / Individual Action by: 

Welland Residents Assoc Bella 

Welland School Bella 

Dogsthorpe Community Assoc    Chris 

Ellie Burton Cherry 

City Collage Adrian 

New Ark Bella 

2x residents Cherry via Ellie 

 

Can do Communities have since met with the WRA at their monthly meeting, a pre-

scheduled meeting to propose a health check with the resident association.  A date 

for this has been agreed for 29 April 6.30-9pm 

 

Contact for ward members: 

Adrian.miners@peterborough.gov.uk    Tel:  0788 9949702 

Chris.ash@peterborough.gov.uk              Tel:  No daytime contact 

Bella.saltmarsh@peterborough.gov.uk   Tel: 0770 1060731 

 

Action required:  

• all of above to be invited to Asset Transfer Workshop – as above 

• CAN do communities to maintain direct contact with x3 Members to progress - 

Marvin/Graham 

• CAN-do Communities to attend meeting of WRA and advise them of plan with 

option for them to be part of the community led steering group 

22



Appendix 1 

 

The Tunnel 

 

In attendance: Cate Harding, Cherry Lester, Cllr Forbes & Casey. Sharon Bellamy & 

Tracey Arnold, Marvin Symes and Graham 

Acknowledged will and great enthusiasm to mobilise a community led management 

committee representative of the wider community 

 

Currently no play managers working in the South area and therefore difficult to run 

and services limited.  Building is though available for flexible room hire.  

 

A small parish council is in the area but it was agreed this would be out of their 

remit/interest 

 

Ward members’ contacts: 

Lisa.forbes@peterborough.gov.uk   Tel: 07931 474580 

Graham.casey@peterborough.gov.uk  Tel: 07768 826967 

Janet.goodwin@peterborough.gov.uk   Tel: 07976 571180 

 

Action required:  

• Key contact Cllr Forbes 

• CAN do communities to maintain direct contact with all Members to progress - 

Marvin/Graham 

• Requested an overview papers to detail the options available to the group - Cate 

 

 

 

Thistle Drive 

 

In attendance: Cate Harding, Cherry Lester, Cllrs Walsh & Rush 

 

Acknowledge will to retain facility but not currently an obvious group to work with to 

form a management/steering committee 

 

High demand for play provision in area but sessions limited due to service capacity 

 

Unique offer of the building and land provides great opportunities to increase 

flexible user space and attract potential larger group commitment to secure future 

of centre via Inspire Peterborough. 

 

Ward members contact: 

Chris.harper@peterborough.gov.uk   Tel: 07572 463898 

Irene.walsh@peterborough.gov.uk    Tel:  01733 342748 

Brian.rush@peterborough.gov.uk       Tel: 01733 348254 

Marco.cereste@peterborough.gov.uk  Tel: N/A 

 

 

23



Appendix 1 

 

 

Action Required:  

• Cllr Walsh to raise at Inspire Peterborough Board meeting 

• Cllr Walsh to explore option for Little Miracles (respite for children with 

disabilities) to be an anchor tenant at the centre 

• Cllrs Walsh & Rush to contact local groups to assess interest in involvement 

• Cherry to check if electronic gym equipment is in full use 

• Cate to pass on Cllrs contact details to CABN-do Communities 

• Cllr Walsh key contact – Marvin to make follow up contact and arrange date 

for Asset transfer Workshop when clear who will be involved 

• Meeting to be arranged with Pam Setterfield & Julie Rivett to explore 

Inspire’s involvement – Alison to arrange 

 

The Spinney 

 

In attendance: Cate Harding, Cherry Lester, Alison Sunley, Cllr Murphy, Terry Barker 

& Chris Ballister. 

 

There is keen interest from within the community to retain the facility.  The Scouts 

who currently use the centre were in attendance at the meeting and keen to take a 

more active role in managing the centre.  There are however concerns about a group 

with a single or faith agenda being the managing committee as the perception could 

be that the facility isn’t accessible for the wider community.   

 

Residents of Ravensthorpe, led by Glennis Bentley have a keen interest in the 

building but the community group established to support the Big Local funding 

scheme are also keen to see the facility retained and this would seem the most 

viable option as significant investment would be needed to make the facility fit for 

purpose.  Youth activities are popular at this venue. 

 

Key contact: Cllr Ed Murphy 

 

Ward Members contact: 

Ed.murphy@peterborough.gov.uk    Tel: 01733 315565 

Gul.nawaz@peterborough.gov.uk     Tel: 07814 658443 

 

 

Action required: 

• Cllr Murphy to identify potential representatives to form a steering group 

• CAN-do communities to maintain direct communications with key contacts to 

give independent advice on how to progress 

  

 

 

 

24



Appendix 1 

 

The Chestnuts 

 

In attendance: Cate Harding, Cherry Lester, Alison Sunley, Stuart Mathers, Cllrs 

Shabbir & Johnson, Marvin & Graham from CAN do Communities, two 

representatives from the Saxon Road Community Centre 

 

Key contact is Stuart Mather, Chair of Eastgate Residents Association    

 

Newly formed Residents Association keen to work in collaboration with existing 

Management Committee that run the Saxon Road Community Centre on Norman 

Road. 

 

Ward Members Contacts 

Nabil.shabbir@peterborough.gov.uk    Tel: 0779 1272095 

Jo.johnson@peterborough.gov.uk        Tel: 07826 287409 

Marrion.todd@peterborough.gov.uk    Tel: 0793 5672687 

 

 

Actions required: 

• Residents Association next meeting is 19 April 

• CAN-do to maintain direct communication with key contact to progress 

•  

 

Crofts Corner 

 

Discussions are already underway directly with Can Do Communities and Bretton 

Parish Council  

 

Paston Farm 

In attendance:  Adrian Chapman, Cate Harding, Cherry Lester, Cllrs Day & Knowles 

and Kevin Tighe 

 

Vivacity do not have the capacity to take on management of the centre in the 

timeline required.  They can offer critical friend advice as a new steering group forms 

in relation to how best to develop and market the centre. 

 

Cllr Day is Mobilizing a community led group (not yet currently formed) and Cllr 

Knowles is keen to involve the existing Creative Paston group.  It is proposed that 

both groups would benefit from a health check with a view to identifying 

representatives from both that could the come together for the purpose of 

managing the centre. 

 

Key contact: Cllr Sue Day 

 

 

 

25



Appendix 1 

Members Contacts: 

Sue.day@peterborough.gov.uk    Tel: 07702803737 

John.knowles@peterborough.gov.uk   Tel: 07572 463523  

George.simons@peterborough.gov.uk     Tel: N/A Mayoral duties 

 

Actions Required: 

• Forward Members contact details to CAN do Communities – Cate 

• CAN-do Communities to maintain direct communication with Members to 

progress 

 

Copeland Centre 

 

In attendance: Cate Harding, Adrian Chapman, Cllr Michael Fletcher, Norman & 

Teresa Green 

 

There is renewed interest from the Copeland Community Association for taking on 

the joint management of the play centre and the community centre.  They have 

previously tried to have involvement in the play centre to provide more flexible 

space for community activities.  It was agreed that this would be a preferable 

arrangement than for the Parish Council to take on as they are not as active in this 

section of Bretton. 

 

Members contacts (one Member only for area): 

Michael.fletcher@peterborough.gov.uk    Tel: 07850 109625    

 

Actions required: 

• Proposal to be taken to the next management committee meeting of Copeland 

Community Assoc on 22 April 

• Subject to agreement to pursue, CAN do Communities to arrange Asset Transfer 

Workshop with group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



Appendix 1 

 

 

General actions required – not centre specific 

• Overview document detailing the options available for management/steering 

groups 

• Expectations document for management/steering groups 

• Clarify how the set up of a City-wide Asset Management Trust will be funded 

• Clarify how groups will receive on-going support post Neighbourhoods 

restructure 

• CAN-do Communities to meet with CAP regarding establishment of CIC to 

continue Play Provision across city.  Stuart and Cherry to be involved 

• CAN-do Communities to reformat Health Check document to support this 

programme.  Now referred to as Asset Transfer Workshop.  Neighbourhoods to 

contribute specific key bullet points top reflect Asset transfer Strategy 

• Establish or identify existing Citywide Asset Managing Trust  

• Asset Transfer Strategy and action plan required to drive this work through to 

conclusion 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Play centre review Summary Report V2  prepared by  

Cate Harding 

Neighbourhood Manager 

Peterborough City Council 

16 April 2013  

 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



Protocols for the closure of the Play Service 
 

1. Protocol for staff 
 
 

Action By whom? When? 

Provide all staff with a 
memory book in order to 
capture the last moments 
of the Play Service in situ. 

AS 30th April 2013 

Meet with the staff group 
on a regular basis to keep 
them informed of what is 
happening with the 
buildings 

AS Following meeting with AC 
on Thursday 1st May 2013 

Provide staff with a 
template letter for 
communication with 
schools 

AS W/b 29th April 2013 

Provide staff with a list of 
frequently asked questions 

AS W/b 29th April 2013 

Meet with those staff who 
are affected by other 
restructuring proposals 

AS/CB W/b 29th April 2013 

Allocated funding to play 
staff to support the final 
celebration activities 

AS/EA/CL W/b 29th April 2013 

Arrange for exit meeting 
with all staff individually 

AS/KH As needed 

 
 

2. Protocol for clients 
 

Action By whom? When? 

Letters to parents/carers 
informing of the Play 
Service closure 

AS W/b 29th April 2013 

Letters to schools and 
referrers 

AS W/b 29th April 2013 

Arrangements for final 
celebration of the play 
service in each centre 

CL/Centre play staff On going from 29th April 
2013 

Analysis of individual 
targeted work referrals 
and identification of follow 
up support. 

AS/KH/MD Work began as of last 
week. Final decision re 
follow up support by the 
end of w/b 29th April 2013 

Communication of named 
contact to parents 
following on from the 
evaluation of the above 

CL/Centre Play Staff W/b 6th May 2013 

Communication to 
identified services for the 
above 

AS W/b 6th May 2013 

 

29



3. Protocol for buildings 
 

Action By whom? When? 

Audit of internal assets CL/Play Centre Staff On going 

Can Do Community Asset 
Transfer Workshops 

Can Do communities All workshops completed 
by the end of May 2013 

Decision regarding viability 
of asset transfer 

AC/CH W/c 10th June 2013 

Plan for arrangements for 
other users of the Play 
Centre buildings 

(IP)/CH/PS W/c 10th June 2013 

Single point of contact re 
issues/concerns regarding 
buildings 

IP/CL Before end of May 2013 

Vision for the future use of 
the Play Centres 

Children’s 
Services/Neighbourhoods 

On going 

Communication to the 
community regarding use 
of play buildings 

Neighbourhoods After June 2013 

Interim Premises 
arrangements including 
identification of key 
holders for individual Play 
Centres 

Neighbourhoods to 
manage 
IP to contact CL re 
information transfer and 
identification of potential 
key holders etc 

W/c 6th May 2013 

Cleaning, maintenance, 
security 

PS link with IP On going until decisions 
are made around 
individual centres. 

Transfer of assets to 
community use 

Neighbourhoods lead 
supported by Children’s 
Services 

Transfer activities mid 
June to September  
Full transfer Sept 2013 

 

30



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES & TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

10 JUNE 2013 Public Report 
 

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services  
 
Contact Officer(s) – Sue Westcott  
Contact Details - 863606 
 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME  
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on the Improvement programme and present 

the refreshed Delivery Plan. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 To note the progress made on the core strategy. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 The Sustainable Community Strategy identifies “Improving Health” and “Supporting Vulnerable 
People” as priorities. Improvement in Children’s Social Care is key to the delivery of these priorities. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 Following an Ofsted Inspection in August 2011, the Council has engaged in a programme to secure 
rapid improvement. This improvement will be driven by three key elements: 
 

• The Children’s Services Improvement Programme 

• The Core Strategy which focuses effort on what we must prioritise 

• The leadership of Members and officers in delivering the required changes 
 

Ofsted have since inspected our safeguarding services recently, details of which are in a separate 
report to this Committee. 
 

4.2 The Council’s progress is closely monitored both internally and externally by this Committee, the 
Scrutiny Task and Finish Group and the External Improvement Board. 
 

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KEY ISSUES 
 

Highlights 
 

• Referrals remaining steady 

• Decrease in number of re- referrals 

• High number of Core Assessments completed and in timescale 

• Slight decrease in number of Initial Assessments completed in timescale 

• High number of Children subject to a CP plan 

• Rise in number of children accommodated 

• Low number of agency staff  

• Launch of Children’s Services Joint Commissioning Board 
 
 
 
 

31



5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Referrals 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

M
a
y
-1

1

J
u
n
-1

1

J
u
l-
1
1

A
u
g
-1

1

S
e
p
-1

1

O
c
t-
1
1

N
o
v
-1

1

D
e
c
-1

1

J
a
n
-1

2

F
e
b
-1

2

M
a
r-
1
2

A
p
r-

1
2

M
a
y
-1

2

J
u
n
-1

2

J
u
l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1

2

S
e
p
-1

2

O
c
t-
1
2

N
o
v
-1

2

D
e
c
-1

2

J
a
n
-1

3

F
e
b
-1

3

M
a
r-
1
3

A
p
r-

1
3

No. of referrals per month Monthly Target
 

 
The number of referrals per 10,000 of the child population remains stable showing 215 being started 
in April which is just below the monthly target of 220 for the next two months. 
 
Referrals started in the week 
 

Referrals started in the week since w/e 19 August 2012

3
7

5
4

6
4

5
7

4
5

1
0
0

5
6

5
4

6
0

7
1

5
5

5
9

3
7

5
7

6
0

7
2

4
8

5
3

3
4

3
8

5
1

3
1

4
6

6
8

6
3

4
7

7
4

4
7

5
6

5
5

3
5

6
7

2
7

6
7

3
5

5
6

6
4

4
7

5
5

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

1
9
/0

8
/2

0
1
2

2
6
/0

8
/2

0
1
2

0
2
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

2
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

0
7
/1

0
/2

0
1
2

1
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
2

2
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
2

2
8
/1

0
/2

0
1
2

0
4
/1

1
/2

0
1
2

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
1
2

1
8
/1

1
/2

0
1
2

2
5
/1

1
/2

0
1
2

0
2
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

0
9
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

1
6
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

2
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

3
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
2

0
6
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

1
3
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

2
0
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

2
7
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

0
3
/0

2
/2

0
1
3

1
0
/0

2
/2

0
1
3

1
7
/0

2
/2

0
1
3

2
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
3

0
3
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

1
0
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

1
7
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

2
4
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

0
7
/0

4
/2

0
1
3

1
4
/0

4
/2

0
1
3

2
1
/0

4
/2

0
1
3

2
8
/0

4
/2

0
1
3

0
5
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

1
2
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

N
u
m

b
e
r

Referrals started Performance management and information, 15 May 2013

 
 
The number of referrals has remained relatively steady at an average of approximately 55 per month. 
There has been a slight reduction in the number of referrals at the end of this reporting period to 47. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Re-referrals  
 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

M
a
y
-1

1

J
u
n
-1

1

J
u
l-
1
1

A
u
g
-1

1

S
e
p
-1

1

O
c
t-
1
1

N
o
v
-1

1

D
e
c
-1

1

J
a
n
-1

2

F
e
b
-1

2

M
a
r-
1
2

A
p
r-
1
2

M
a
y
-1

2

J
u
n
-1

2

J
u
l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1

2

S
e
p
-1

2

O
c
t-
1
2

N
o
v
-1

2

D
e
c
-1

2

J
a
n
-1

3

F
e
b
-1

3

M
a
r-
1
3

A
p
r-
1
3

% of re-referrals - YTD % of re-referrals target
 

 
There has been a marked decrease in the number of referrals in April 13 and this trend is continuing 
into May at 26.5 %. This is the lowest year to date figure seen over the last two years. This could be 
due to a greater focus on the completion of the work or a sense that we have worked through some of 
the cases that previously had not been worked satisfactorily given the difficulties in the service. 

 
Initial Assessments 
 

Initial Assessments in progress but outside of timescale (10 working days)

2 0 1 1 2 7 1
2

1
1

5 1
0

1
0

1
2

1
3

1
6

2
3

2
1

2
1

1
7

1
8

1
9

9 7 5 1
2

1
2

2 1 0 6 2 4 2 5 1
1

2
6

2
2

2
2

2
1

4 3 3

0

10

20

30

40

0
5
/0

8
/2

0
1
2

1
2
/0

8
/2

0
1
2

1
9
/0

8
/2

0
1
2

2
6
/0

8
/2

0
1
2

0
2
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

2
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
2

0
7
/1

0
/2

0
1
2

1
4
/1

0
/2

0
1
2

2
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
2

2
8
/1

0
/2

0
1
2

0
4
/1

1
/2

0
1
2

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
1
2

1
8
/1

1
/2

0
1
2

2
5
/1

1
/2

0
1
2

0
2
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

0
9
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

1
6
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

2
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
3

3
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
2

0
6
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

1
3
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

2
0
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

2
7
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

0
3
/0

2
/2

0
1
3

1
0
/0

2
/2

0
1
3

1
7
/0

2
/2

0
1
3

2
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
3

0
3
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

1
0
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

1
7
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

2
4
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
3

0
7
/0

4
/2

0
1
3

1
4
/0

4
/2

0
1
3

2
1
/0

4
/2

0
1
3

2
8
/0

4
/2

0
1
3

0
5
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

1
2
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

Number outside 10 w days
Performance management and information, 15 May 2013  

33



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
There has been a slight decrease in the number of initial assessments completed in timescale in April 
to 73.5%. This has risen again mid month and it has been partly due to the need to thoroughly 
complete the assessment so there is no re-referral. This is being closely monitored as it is imperative 
that this does not slip and this chart illustrates that only 3/4 assessments were outside timescale in 
the preceding three months. 

 

Initial Assessments completed within 10 days of Referral

2
0
1

3
2
0

1
2
6

1
7
9

1
7
3

2
1
1

2
5
4

2
2
9

2
1
4

1
9
5

2
1
7

2
1
3

2
3
1

2
0
0

3
1
5

1
2
0

1
7
1

1
6
8

1
9
9

2
4
6

2
0
6

1
6
8

1
4
3

1
8
1

1
7
6

1
6
9

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13

# of IA's

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

% in timescale

Completed In timescales % on time YTD Performance management and information, 15 May 2013 

 
 

 Core Assessments  
 

Core Assessments completed within 35 days of assessment start

1
3
5

2
2
9

1
5
6

1
2
4

1
1
6

1
2
4

1
3
5

1
5
4

1
0
3

1
6
2

1
4
1

1
3
9

1
5
0

1
2
1

2
1
3

1
3
5

1
0
6

1
0
0

1
0
7

9
3

1
1
4

7
7

9
5

9
9

9
7

1
1
4

0

50

100

150

200

250

Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13

# of CAs

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

% in timescale

Completed In timescales % in time YTD Performance management and information, 15 May 2013 

 
 

Conversely a high proportion of core assessments were completed in timescale, rising from January 
2013. This is excellent performance especially as the number of core assessments completed stood 
at 150. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Workforce 
 

Workforce - social worker posts

52.5 54.5
51.7 50.7 48.7

52.7 53.7 52.7

63.9
66.9

72.7 72.3 71.3 68.9 67.3 67.7 67.8 67.8 67.8

19.2 17.2
19.2 19.2

26.2

26.2 25.2

20.6

19.4 12.8

12.8
10.0 11.0

13.0 15.0 16.0 16.0 17.0 17.0
7.06.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

Nov-11 Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13

Permanent Agency Peripatetic Establishment Performance management and information, 15 May 2013 

 
 
Workforce Social Work Posts: 
 
This chart shows the numbers of agency staff as 17. This includes 4 maternity leave covers and our 4 
peripatetic workers. We have 9 new starters in the pipeline. 
 
We also have a number of Team Manager posts that we are trying hard to recruit to without success. 
 
We are considering whether we need to offer a market rate supplement for these posts. 
 
Our recruitment campaign has been refreshed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



 
5.8 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Child Protection Plans 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

M
a
y
-1

1

J
u
n
-1

1

J
u
l-
1
1

A
u
g
-1

1

S
e
p
-1

1

O
c
t-
1
1

N
o
v
-1

1

D
e
c
-1

1

J
a
n
-1

2

F
e
b
-1

2

M
a
r-

1
2

A
p
r-

1
2

M
a
y
-1

2

J
u
n
-1

2

J
u
l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1

2

S
e
p
-1

2

O
c
t-
1
2

N
o
v
-1

2

D
e
c
-1

2

J
a
n
-1

3

F
e
b
-1

3

M
a
r-

1
3

A
p
r-

1
3

No. of children with CPP - month snapshot Monthly Target
 

 
The number of children subject to a plan remains at 270 and is above our current target. 
 
An audit and review of numbers of CP Conferences has led to a greater focus by the Chairs of the 
significant harm in relation to each sibling and whether the threshold has been met for a Conference. 
 
Children Looked After  
 

280

290

300

310

320

330

340

350

360

370

M
a
y
-1

1

J
u
n
-1

1

J
u
l-
1
1

A
u
g
-1

1

S
e
p
-1

1

O
c
t-
1
1

N
o
v
-1

1

D
e
c
-1

1

J
a
n
-1

2

F
e
b
-1

2

M
a
r-

1
2

A
p
r-

1
2

M
a
y
-1

2

J
u
n
-1

2

J
u
l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1

2

S
e
p
-1

2

O
c
t-
1
2

N
o
v
-1

2

D
e
c
-1

2

J
a
n
-1

3

F
e
b
-1

3

M
a
r-

1
3

A
p
r-

1
3

No. of children looked after - month snapshot Monthly Target
 

 
The number of children looked after has also increased by 12 to 361; an all time high owing to the 
need to accommodate a number of vulnerable young women and large sibling groups. 
  
Member Visits Update 
 
A full schedule of Member visits is in place, with Members visiting teams across the whole of the 
department, including those based in Bayard Place, the Youth Offending Service, Clare Lodge and 
the residential homes.  Staff welcome the visits as it is an opportunity to showcase the valuable work 
they are doing and Members enjoy the experience and gain a greater understanding of the services 
being provided. 
 
 

36



5.11 
 
 
 
 
5.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.14 
 

DfE 
 
Our self assessment and progress report was presented to the DFE on 1 May. We continue to await 
the Minister’s decision to lift us out of special measures or not.  
 
Early Intervention Activity 
 
The Children and Families Joint Commissioning Board held its first stakeholder event on the 22nd 
April.  There were over 100 attendees from the public, independent and voluntary sectors.  The event 
included details of the Prevention and Early Intervention Strategy, Ofsted feedback from the recent 
safeguarding inspection and Children’s Services priorities going forward. Also the new chair of the 
Local Safeguarding Board Russell Waite talked about the focus of the board following the Ofsted 
inspection. A key area that was highlighted was the lack of focus on work with fathers and this will 
form part of the Board’s continuing work. 
 
Meetings have taken place with the Neighbourhoods team with the ward councillors for each of the 
play centres. An action plan for next steps towards asset transfer is being developed with an 
organisation called ‘Can Do Communities’.  
 
A Young Carers consultation event took place in March with 20 attendees.  
 
A group of staff from adult and children’s services are exploring the setting up of a transitions team 
14-25 years to enable early identification of need and seamless transition of young people to adult 
services.  
 
LAC Inspection  
 
The new Ofsted framework for looked after Children and Safeguarding has been published. Ofsted 
will be inspecting some local authorities’ looked after children service this month and June. They are 
targeting those authorities that did not do well in the last inspection and we are preparing for this 
possibility. 
 
Summary 
 
A continued improving picture which has been successfully reported to the DfE and will be used for 
the Minister to take a decision. 
 
We intend to push forward with the development of our single assessment tool with a focus on high 
standards of practice. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 The cost of the improvement programme can be met from within existing budgets. Resources are 
available to secure improvement in the immediate and longer term.  
 

6.2 The Secretary of State has the power to issue a statutory notice if he is not satisfied that sufficient 
progress is being made. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 Partner agencies, parents and children will be involved in the improvement activity. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 This Committee will continue to receive a regular update on progress and the Task and Finish Group 
will meet monthly to support the improvement. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

37



9.1 • Ofsted Inspection of Safeguarding: Peterborough 6th September 2011  

• Ofsted Unannounced Inspection of contact referral and assessment arrangements 3rd March 
2011 

• Ofsted Safeguarding and Looked after Children Inspection: Peterborough 21st May 2010 

• Ofsted Local Authority Arrangements for the Protection of Children: inspection report 8 March 
2013 

 
10. APPENDICES 

 

10.1 Children’s Services Delivery Plan 
 
 

  

38



1
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

        

O
n
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
  

H
e
lp
in
g
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 t
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
ir
 B
e
s
t 
 

 

39



2
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

O
u
r 
V
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 

 H
e
lp
in
g
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 t
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
ir
 B
e
s
t 
 

 
•
 

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 e
a
rl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

•
 

H
e
lp
in
g
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
 s
a
fe
 

•
 

G
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 c
a
re
 

•
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 s
u
c
c
e
e
d
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 b
e
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 

 O
u
r 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

 
1
. 
T
h
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 b
e
s
t 
in
te
re
s
t 
s
h
a
ll 
b
e
 o
f 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
ll 
a
re
a
s
 a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
m
 

 
2
. 
W
o
rk
 i
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
 

 
3
. 
W
o
rk
 i
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 o
p
ti
m
u
m
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

 
4
. 
W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
w
it
h
in
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 o
p
ti
m
u
m
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

 
5
. 
W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
s
 b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

 
6
. 
W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
, 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 p
ro
m
o
te
s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 

 
7
. 
R
e
c
o
rd
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
, 
c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
n
d
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 
8
. 
W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
s
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

  

40



3
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

O
u
r 
P
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 

•
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
: 
 C
h
ild
re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 t
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
h
e
m
 

a
n
d
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
k
e
 s
e
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
 

•
 

E
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
: 
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e
a
rl
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 c
o
s
tl
y
 a
n
d
 p
o
s
s
ib
ly
 l
e
s
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 l
a
te
r 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
: 
 W

o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
t 
a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 s
e
lf
-r
e
lia
n
c
e
 

•
 

S
h
a
re
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
: 
 G
e
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
fo
r 
a
 f
a
m
ily
 i
s
 e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
’s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
h
a
re
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

•
 

E
q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
: 
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
u
lt
u
ra
l,
 g
e
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
o
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 w
h
ic
h
 s
o
m
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 f
a
c
e
 

•
 

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t:
  
A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

         

41



4
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

1
. 
 P
ro
v
id
in
g
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 w
it
h
 E
a
rl
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

 D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
E
a
rl
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 J
o
in
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 s
tr
a
n
d
s
 o
f 

w
o
rk
: 

 1
. 
  
S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 N
e
e
d
s
 (
S
E
N
)/
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

2
. 
E
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W

e
llb
e
in
g
 

3
. 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 N
E
E
T
 (
N
o
t 
in
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
T
ra
in
in
g
) 

4
. 
E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 H
ig
h
 N
e
e
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

5
. 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 (
 C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 (
C
A
F
)/
T
e
a
m
 A
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
 (
T
A
C
))
 

6
. 
P
a
re
n
ts
 w
it
h
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 D
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

1
.1
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
  

S
E
N
/D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 
A
ll 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 (
C
W
D
) 
p
a
n
e
l 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 •
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 d
ir
e
c
t 

p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 b
y
 1
0
%
 

 •
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
, 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 s
h
o
rt
 

b
re
a
k
s
 –
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
u
rv
e
y
 

 

W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
 -
 

W
e
lb
o
u
rn
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 

         
  
  
  
  
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

    

•
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
 S
y
s
te
m
s
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
ll 
in
 p
la
c
e
 

      •
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

   •
 

S
u
rv
e
y
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

p
a
re
n
t/
c
a
re
rs
 o
n
 e
lig
ib
ili
ty
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 

fo
r 
 C
W
D
  
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
b
y
 f
a
m
ily
 v
o
ic
e
 w
h
o
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 

G
 

42



5
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

   •
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 o
u
t 
o
f 
c
it
y
 

c
a
re
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
(t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 

b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
) 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

a
ll 
lo
c
a
l 
p
a
re
n
t 
c
a
re
r 
 f
o
ru
m
s
, 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 j
o
in
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 P
a
n
e
l 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 b
e
s
p
o
k
e
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 

re
m
a
in
 i
n
 C
it
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 3
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 

p
o
s
t 
1
6
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 –
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 

h
a
v
e
 t
h
is
 a
t 
C
it
y
 C
o
lle
g
e
. 
 T
h
e
 

n
e
w
 S
E
N
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
ill
 d
e
ta
il 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 

to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

n
e
e
d
in
g
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
u
t 
o
f 
c
it
y
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 

1
.2
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
/ 
m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 

W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
 -
 

W
e
lb
o
u
rn
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

•
 

T
a
lk
in
g
 t
h
e
ra
p
ie
s
 (
3
T
’s
) 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
. 
 

W
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t 
g
ro
w
in
g
 –
 4
2
. 
S
c
h
o
o
l 

n
u
rs
in
g
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
u
rs
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
  
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 e
a
rl
y
, 

th
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 d
e
la
y
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 3
 T
’s
 

 •
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 g
a
p
 i
n
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
ti
e
r 
2
. 
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
(C
P
F
T
) 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
 a
n
d
 A
d
o
le
s
c
e
n
t 

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 (
C
A
M
H
) 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

R
 

43



6
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

s
ta
te
 t
h
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 C
A
M
H
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 

o
n
ly
 T
ie
r 
3
, 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 

g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 

1
.3
 

                           

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 N
E
E
T
 

w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
  

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
b
u
s
in
g
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 
 I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

th
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f.
 

(t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 b
e
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
) 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 S
T
i’s
 

(t
tb
d
) 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 T
P
 

ra
te
s
 (
tt
b
d
) 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

o
f 
p
e
rs
is
te
n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

(t
tb
d
) 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

A
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

(t
tb
d
) 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
1
6
 –
 1
9
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 N
E
E
T
 

(t
tb
d
) 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
1
6
 –
 1
9
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
 L
A
C
 w
h
o
 a
re
 N
E
E
T
 

(t
tb
d
) 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 o
r 
w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 

W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
 -
 

W
e
lb
o
u
rn
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

                       2
0
1
4
 

•
 

S
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 

R
P
A
/V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 

m
e
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m
e
. 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 

p
la
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
’ 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

R
e
la
te
d
 B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
S
u
rv
e
y
s
 w
ill
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 2
0
th
 M
a
y
. 
T
h
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 y
e
a
r 
6
, 
y
e
a
r 
8
 

a
n
d
 y
e
a
r 
1
0
 p
u
p
ils
 w
ill
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 A
S
B
, 

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 P
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 a
b
u
s
e
 w
o
rk
 p
la
n
s
 

b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

 •
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 £
3
m
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 T
S
B
 (
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

B
o
a
rd
) 
fo
r 
th
e
 F
u
tu
re
 C
it
ie
s
 

G
e
n
e
ra
to
r 
P
ro
je
c
t.
 A
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 

o
f 
th
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
re
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
k
ill
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
E
E
T
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

b
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
ti
a
l 
in
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
is
 

G
 

44



7
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

 
1
0
0
%
 t
a
rg
e
t 

m
o
n
e
y
 

1
.4
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 e
a
rl
y
 y
e
a
rs
 

a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 n
e
e
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
  

•
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 •
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
ild
 c
a
re
 

p
la
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
. 

(t
tb
d
) 
 

W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
 –
 

W
e
lb
o
u
rn
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 
•
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 4
5
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
if
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 1
5
0
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 w
o
rk
e
d
 

w
it
h
. 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 

a
t 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 6
0
%
 -
 7
0
%
. 

S
tr
o
n
g
 m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 b
o
a
rd
 d
ri
v
e
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
 

D
V
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

 •
 

N
in
e
 m

o
n
th
 –
 5
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 

b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 b
y
 m

u
lt
i-
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 g
ro
u
p
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 i
n
fo
rm

 
fu
tu
re
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
B
y
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 

M
a
rk
e
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 

in
fo
rm

 d
ia
lo
g
u
e
 w
it
h
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
h
ild
c
a
re
 s
e
c
to
r 

G
 

1
.5
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

(C
A
F
/T
A
C
/M
A
S
G
) 
 

•
 
H
a
v
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

fa
m
ily
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

to
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

re
-r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 C
S
C
. 
1
0
 %
 

    

W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
 –
 

W
e
lb
o
u
rn
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

     S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

•
 

R
e
-r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ra
te
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 

h
ig
h
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 

s
ig
n
s
 o
f 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
v
e
r 
m
o
s
t 

re
c
e
n
t 
m
o
n
th
s
 

 •
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 

G
 

45



8
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

    •
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
d
e
-e
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 

M
A
S
G
s
 f
ro
m
 C
S
C
. 
1
0
%
 

               •
 
Im

p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
 s
ta
r 
m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 
(6
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

C
F
J
C
B
) 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
t 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 C
S
C
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

 •
 

D
e
-e
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 

M
A
S
G
 a
re
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 
S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 f
o
r 
tw
o
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 

–
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
is
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
n
y
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
la
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 i
s
 

to
 a
d
d
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
la
y
e
r 
o
f 
Q
A
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
s
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
-

e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 a
re
 a
t 
th
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

2
/3
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
 

 •
 

O
f 
th
e
 1
5
2
 c
a
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 M
A
S
G
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 w
e
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
, 
9
3
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

d
e
-e
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 C
S
C
 

  •
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 S
ta
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
is
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
; 
tw
o
 

p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
ra
in
e
d
 a
s
 

tr
a
in
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
e
rs
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 t
ra
in
 1
0
0
 

p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 e
a
c
h
. 
P
C
C
 i
s
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 l
ic
e
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

d
a
ta
 i
n
-p
u
t 
o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 o
p
e
ra
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l,
 

a
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
u
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

46



9
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

1
.6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 L
S
C
B
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 

J
o
in
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 

(L
S
C
B
 M
A
 a
u
d
it
) 

W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
 

W
e
lb
o
u
rn
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

A
d
u
lt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 a
 g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 j
o
in
t 
p
ro
to
c
o
l 
th
a
t 

e
n
s
u
re
s
 a
d
u
lt
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
rk
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
h
e
re
 p
a
re
n
ts
 o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 h
a
v
e
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
. 
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

A
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 1
.0
 –
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
a
s
e
 l
o
a
d
s
 o
f 
C
ID
s
 

 2
.0
 –
 S
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
n
 C
P
F
T
 a
n
d
 P
C
T
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 T
ie
r 
2
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 3
.0
 -
 1
6
-1
8
 N
E
E
T
: 
 

 A
p
ri
l 
fi
g
u
re
s
 a
s
 b
e
lo
w
:-
 

 
o
 
1
6
-1
8
 N
E
E
T
: 
7
.5
%
 =
 5
0
4
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
w
a
s
 8
.5
%
 =
 5
7
9
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
1
2
) 

o
 
1
6
-1
8
 i
n
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
: 
8
1
.0
%
 (
th
is
 t
im
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r:
 8
1
.2
%
) 

o
 
1
6
-1
8
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
n
: 
2
.4
%
 =
 1
6
6
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
w
a
s
 1
.9
%
 =
 1
3
5
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
1
2
):
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
e
re
 w
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
 

N
E
E
T
 s
ta
tu
s
 h
a
s
 d
e
c
lin
e
d
 s
te
a
d
ily
 o
v
e
r 
re
c
e
n
t 
m
o
n
th
s
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
 a
g
o
 

 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
M
a
rc
h
 ’
1
3
 (
la
te
s
t 
d
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
):
 

 

 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

S
ta
t 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

N
E
E
T
 

6
.1
%
 

7
.5
%
 

7
.5
%
 

N
o
t 
K
n
o
w
n
 

9
.4
%
 

1
0
.5
%
 

2
.9
%
 

In
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

7
9
.7
%
 

7
3
%
 

8
1
.3
%
 

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 A
S
B
 a
re
a
s
 

 4
.0
 -
  
C
o
n
n
e
c
te
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 r
e
a
c
h
 1
5
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 b
y
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
y
. 
 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 a
ro
u
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 
T
h
is
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 a
s
 f
o
r 
A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
fl
e
c
ts
 a
 s
lo
w
 d
o
w
n
 i
n
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ra
te
. 
A
 n
e
w
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 f
u
ll 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
m
o
n
g
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

47



1
0
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

 5
.0
 –
 T
h
e
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 f
o
r 
C
A
F
s
 s
h
o
w
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
 I
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

5
0
1
 C
A
F
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
, 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 3
4
9
 i
n
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 –
 t
h
a
t 
is
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 
o
v
e
r 
4
2
%
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 y
e
a
r.
 A
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
ig
n
e
d
 u
p
 t
o
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

S
ta
r 
–
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ig
n
s
 o
f 
u
s
a
g
e
 g
o
o
d
 –
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 t
o
o
l 
is
 u
s
e
fu
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 l
ik
e
 s
e
e
in
g
 h
o
w
 f
a
r 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

 6
.0
 –
 A
d
u
lt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 o
n
 g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 j
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 a
 f
e
a
tu
re
 

2
. 
 H
e
lp
in
g
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 w
it
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 s
a
fe
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

 1
. 
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 O
fs
te
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

2
. 
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
im
e
ly
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 n
e
e
d
 

3
. 
 E
v
e
ry
 c
h
ild
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
, 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
le
a
r 
p
la
n
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 n
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

ri
s
k
 w
it
h
in
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 

4
. 
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 f
ro
m
 h
a
rm
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

2
.1
.1
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 O
fs
te
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

 P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 

 
J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

A
 

 2
.2
.1
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
U
n
it
 H
u
b
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 

1
0
%
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

re
p
e
a
t 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 1
5
%
 

 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

 
M
a
y
/J
u
n
e
 

1
3
  

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
. 
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
o
f 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 a
lig
n
 w
it
h
 M
A
R
U
 

A
 

2
.2
.2
 

F
o
rm

a
lis
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 /
M
A
R
U
 H
u
b
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 u
s
e
 

o
f 
M
A
S
G
/ 
T
ie
r2
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 
1
0
%
 

 •
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

D
a
rr
y
l 
F
re
e
m
a
n
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
re
-s
h
a
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

to
 b
e
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

in
 J
u
n
e
. 
  
R
e
-r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ra
te
 h
a
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 M
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 A
p
ri
l 

A
 

48



1
1
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

re
p
e
a
t 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
. 
1
5
%
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
f 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

2
.2
.3
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
t 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
s
ta
g
e
 

in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 
u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 I
A
s
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

IA
 e
n
d
in
g
 i
n
 N
F
A
. 
1
0
%
 

 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

   

P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
re
-i
n
fo
rm

in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

A
 

2
.2
.4
 

E
n
s
u
re
 S
4
7
s
 a
re
 o
n
ly
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
 

is
 s
u
ff
e
ri
n
g
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
h
a
rm

 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 f
o
r 
S
4
7
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

R
e
- 
a
u
d
it
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 

fo
r 
S
4
7
. 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
S
4
7
 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
c
o
re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
1
0
%
 

•
 

D
e
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
C
A
 

e
n
d
in
g
 i
n
 N
F
A
. 
1
0
%
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

D
a
rr
y
l 
F
re
e
m
a
n
 

M
a
y
 1
3
 

  F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
  

W
o
rk
 t
o
 a
lig
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 M
A
R
U
 i
s
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
4
7
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 i
n
 

A
p
ri
l 

A
 

2
.2
.5
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 t
im
e
lin
e
s
s
 o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
  
w
it
h
 a
 

re
n
e
w
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 

q
u
a
lit
y
  

•
 

T
im
e
lin
e
s
s
 P
I’
s
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
ro
m
 a
u
d
it
 

s
h
o
w
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
  

D
a
rr
y
l 
F
re
e
m
a
n
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

T
im
e
lin
e
s
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
to
 I
A
s
 

s
lip
p
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s
e
e
n
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 

C
o
re
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 r
a
te
s
 

A
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 D
e
s
p
it
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
C
S
E
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
to
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 I
A
 i
s
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b
ri
n
g
in
g
 u
s
 c
lo
s
e
r 
to
 s
ta
t 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r 
o
u
tt
u
rn
s
 a
n
d
 h
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 o
u
r 
in
d
ic
a
ti
v
e
  
ta
rg
e
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r.
  
R
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ra
te
s
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 t
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
le
v
e
l 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
s
 h
a
d
 a
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 f
o
r 
S
4
7
 h
a
s
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
e
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th
ly
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 

 2
.3
.1
 

R
e
-o
rg
a
n
is
e
 w
o
rk
lo
a
d
s
 i
n
 

F
a
m
ily
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
fo
c
u
s
 i
s
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 o
n
 C
IN
 a
n
d
 C
P
 

•
 

A
ll 
C
IN
 o
p
e
n
 

c
a
s
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 p
la
n
s
. 
8
0
%
 

•
 

T
h
ro
u
g
h
p
u
t 
o
f 

C
IN
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 i
e
 s
te
p
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 

•
 

R
e
-r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ra
te
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 

to
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 

 •
 

W
o
rk
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 

G
 

49



1
2
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

c
a
s
e
s
  

u
p
, 
s
te
p
 d
o
w
n
, 
c
lo
s
u
re
. 

1
0
%
 

•
 

D
e
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

C
P
 p
la
n
s
. 
1
5
%
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
ra
te
s
. 
1
5
%
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
 C
a
re
 P
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
s
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r/
c
lo
s
u
re
 

 •
 

R
e
-r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 

2
.3
.2
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
re
v
is
e
d
 C
IN
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 m
u
lt
i 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ig
n
 u
p
 

•
 

C
IN
 o
p
e
n
 c
a
s
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 p
la
n
s
. 
8
0
%
 

•
 

D
e
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

C
P
 p
la
n
s
. 
1
5
%
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
ra
te
s
. 
1
5
%
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 

C
IN
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 

d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
d
  
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 v
ia
 P
S
C
B
 

G
 

2
.3
.3
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
re
v
is
e
d
 C
IN
 p
la
n
 

te
m
p
la
te
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
fo
r 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
  

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 p
lu
s
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
  
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 

in
 t
e
rm

 o
f 
c
la
ri
ty
 o
f 

p
la
n
s
. 
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

 D
a
rr
y
l 
F
re
e
m
a
n
 

 G
le
n
 D
e
n
h
a
m
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 

N
e
w
 C
IN
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
it
h
in
 L
iq
u
id
lo
g
ic
 

A
 

2
.3
.4
 

E
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
e
d
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 

m
o
n
th
ly
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 o
n
 

L
L
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
fi
le
, 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

H
o
S
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

•
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 s
e
t 

w
it
h
 t
e
a
m
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

in
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

 •
 

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
la
n
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 

re
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

 •
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
u
d
it
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 •
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
 R
e
fo
rm

 
B
o
a
rd
 –
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 o
f 
S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
rs
 i
n
 

A
 

50



1
3
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
, 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 

to
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

 •
 

R
e
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
la
te
r 
in
 y
e
a
r 
to
 c
h
e
c
k
 

o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 

2
.3
.5
 

A
g
re
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

‘F
a
m
ily
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 S
ta
r’
 

m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 f
o
r 
m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 N
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 u
s
e
 

o
f 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
  
S
ta
r.
 

•
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

C
S
C
 s
ta
ff
. 

•
 

N
e
w
 c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 R
 

a
n
d
 A
 f
ro
m
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 

to
 s
ta
rt
 u
s
in
g
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

S
ta
r 
fo
r 
a
ll 
n
e
w
 C
o
re
s
- 

a
s
 a
 p
ilo
t 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

D
a
rr
y
l 
F
re
e
m
a
n
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

  J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

P
ilo
t 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 i
n
 F
a
m
ily
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

3
 

A
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 S
ta
ff
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
  
o
f 
re
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
o
rk
lo
a
d
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 L
A
C
 a
n
d
 F
S
T
  

 O
fs
te
d
 d
id
 n
o
t 
fi
n
d
 a
n
y
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 p
la
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1
0
0
 c
a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 
O
fs
te
d
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
w
 C
IN
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 e
a
s
ie
r 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
le
n
t 
it
s
e
lf
 

to
 s
m
a
rt
e
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
 m

o
re
 f
a
m
ily
 f
ri
e
n
d
ly
 

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 r
e
p
o
rt
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 s
e
t 
w
a
s
 h
e
lp
fu
l 
in
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
re
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

2
.4
.1
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

P
S
C
B
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 m

a
x
im
u
m
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
  

•
 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 

B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
u
n
it
 

•
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

B
o
a
rd
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

G
le
n
 D
e
n
h
a
m
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 
•
 

T
h
e
 n
e
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
is
 i
n
 p
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
o
a
rd
 u
n
ti
l 
3
1
s
t  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

 •
 

A
 s
c
o
p
in
g
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
w
a
y
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
y
 

A
 

2
.4
.2
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 r
o
le
 o
f 
‘P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 

•
 

D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
b
le
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

G
le
n
 D
e
n
h
a
m
 w
ill
 a
c
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 

A
 

51



1
4
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
r’
 /
S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
 

C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 o
n
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

p
o
o
r 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

G
le
n
 D
e
n
h
a
m
 

o
n
w
a
rd
s
 

P
S
W
 w
it
h
in
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
T
h
e
 

c
o
re
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 

b
y
 D
M
T
 a
n
d
 a
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
. 
L
a
u
n
c
h
/ 
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

J
u
n
e
- 
S
e
p
 2
0
1
3
 R
e
v
ie
w
 w
it
h
in
 6
 

m
o
n
th
s
  

 
2
.4
.3
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
in
g
 o
f 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 

Q
A
 S
e
rv
ic
e
  
to
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
le
rt
s
 b
y
 C
P
 c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
to
rs
 

  

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

o
n
w
a
rd
s
 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 Q
A
 i
n
 p
o
s
t 

a
n
d
 h
a
s
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
c
o
p
e
 –
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

A
 

2
.4
.4
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 ‘
lo
c
a
l’ 
C
IN
/C
P
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s
c
o
re
c
a
rd
 t
o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

a
re
a
s
 m
o
s
t 
in
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
 

S
c
o
re
c
a
rd
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 

In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

A
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
H
o
S
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 0
9
.0
4
.1
3
  
h
a
s
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
c
o
p
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
u
t 
to
o
 s
o
o
n
 t
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
n
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

 3
. 
 G
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 c
a
re
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

 1
. 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 r
e
m
a
in
 i
n
 c
a
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
e
a
s
t 
ti
m
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
s
 a
re
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 b
e
h
a
lf
 a
s
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 

a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

2
. 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 c
a
re
 h
a
v
e
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 c
a
re
 p
la
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
  

3
. 
T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 m
a
tc
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

3
.1
.1
 

R
e
o
rg
a
n
is
e
 w
o
rk
lo
a
d
s
 i
n
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 C
a
re
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

le
n
g
th
 o
f 
p
ro
c
e
e
d
in
g
s
 t
o
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

J
e
n
n
y
 G
o
o
d
e
s
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 

•
 

R
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

w
o
rk
lo
a
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
  

A
 

52



1
5
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

e
n
s
u
re
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 f
o
c
u
s
  
is
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 

C
a
re
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
rt
 

P
ro
c
e
e
d
in
g
s
  

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 2
6
 w
e
e
k
s
 

 •
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
ir
e
c
t 

w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 C
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 

C
a
re
 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
b
ili
ty
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 •
 

L
A
C
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 g
ro
u
p
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

 •
 

W
o
rk
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 

c
le
a
ri
n
g
 u
p
 d
a
ta
 e
rr
o
rs
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 

 •
 

A
 l
e
g
a
l 
s
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
u
rt
 d
e
a
d
lin
e
s
 a
re
 a
d
h
e
re
d
 t
o
 

p
re
v
e
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 

 •
 

S
ta
b
ili
ty
 C
o
re
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 b
y
 e
n
d
s
 o
f 
M
a
y
 1
3
 

3
.1
.2
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

  

•
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 

m
e
t 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

A
n
n
 G
a
rr
e
tt
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 r
e
e
n
g
in
e
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 

s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 b
y
 D
M
T
 

A
 

3
.1
.3
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 l
o
c
a
l 
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

s
c
o
re
 c
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

A
n
n
 G
a
rr
e
tt
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 

L
A
C
 s
c
o
re
c
a
rd
 u
n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
ll 

h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 

A
 

3
.1
.4
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la
n
 

 

•
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
fo
s
te
ri
n
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 

m
e
t 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

A
n
n
 G
a
rr
e
tt
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 r
e
e
n
g
in
e
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 

s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 b
y
 D
M
T
 

A
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 c
o
u
rt
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
re
c
e
n
t 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 p
la
n
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 n
o
te
d
. 
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
o
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
c
h
ro
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
u
t 
b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
 

 

53



1
6
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

3
.2
.1
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
c
a
re
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
  
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

J
e
n
n
y
 G
o
o
d
e
s
 

J
o
 C
o
tt
e
ll 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 1
3
/1
4
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

G
 

3
.2
.2
 

R
e
v
is
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 

p
a
th
w
a
y
 p
la
n
s
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 i
t 
m
o
re
 u
s
e
r 
fa
m
ily
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 p
la
n
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

G
le
n
 D
e
n
h
a
m
 

J
e
n
n
y
 G
o
o
d
e
s
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 
T
e
m
p
la
te
s
 r
e
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 

F
o
rm

 D
e
s
ig
n
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 

L
iq
u
id
lo
g
ic
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
. 
 N
o
 

d
e
a
d
lin
e
 a
s
 s
u
c
h
 b
u
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 

re
g
u
la
rl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

  

A
 

3
.2
.3
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 I
H
A
 a
n
d
 R
H
A
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
 w
e
ll 

a
s
 t
im
e
lin
e
s
s
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

H
W
B
/C
P
P
 o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
  

n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
L
A
C
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 

w
e
 a
re
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
m
  

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

J
e
n
n
y
 G
o
o
d
e
s
 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
3
 

•
 

L
A
C
 S
c
o
re
c
a
rd
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

IH
A
/R
H
A
 f
o
r 
ti
m
e
lin
e
s
s
 

 •
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
p
u
t 
to
 C
P
P
 

a
b
o
u
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 

 •
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 C
a
ro
l 

R
ic
h
a
rd
s
o
n
  
o
n
 2
9
.0
4
.3
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
a
u
d
it
 o
f 

h
o
w
 w
e
 a
re
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
L
A
C
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

 •
 

IH
A
 i
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 c
a
p
u
te
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s
c
o
re
c
a
rd
 f
o
r 

R
A
/F
C
C
/C
W
D
 a
s
 a
 w
a
y
 o
f 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 

A
 

3
.2
.4
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 d
e
e
p
 d
iv
e
 a
u
d
it
 

to
 r
e
v
ie
w
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 

p
a
th
w
a
y
 p
la
n
s
 

A
u
d
it
s
 o
f 
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
c
a
re
 

p
la
n
s
 s
h
o
w
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

ju
d
g
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

G
le
n
 D
e
n
h
a
m
 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
3
 

O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

A
 

3
.2
.5
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 c
a
re
 b
y
 

d
ri
v
in
g
 u
p
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 A
u
d
it
 o
f 
P
E
P
s
 

a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

J
e
n
n
y
 G
o
o
d
e
s
 

J
o
n
 L
e
w
is
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 C
L
A
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

tr
a
c
k
e
r 
fo
r 
L
A
C
. 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
to
 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 w
it
h
 E
s
s
e
x
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

A
 

54



1
7
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
E
 P
E
P
s
 

h
o
w
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
tt
e
r 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 L
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 d
a
ta
 e
rr
o
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
 A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
a
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

b
e
in
g
 m
e
t.
  
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
s
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 n
e
w
 c
o
u
rt
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 f
o
r 
p
ro
c
e
e
d
in
g
s
 

(w
it
h
in
 2
6
 w
e
e
k
s
).
 P
o
s
it
iv
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
. 
 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
e
 a
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
o
rg
a
n
iz
in
g
 a
 L
A
C
 a
w
a
y
 d
a
y
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 

 3
.3
.1
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 m

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

fo
s
te
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

lo
d
g
in
g
s
) 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

n
e
t 
g
a
in
 o
f 
in
-h
o
u
s
e
 

c
a
re
rs
 b
y
 2
5
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 

 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
  

•
 

N
e
w
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
u
ild
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

 •
 

N
e
w
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
s
/b
ra
n
d
in
g
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

 •
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 P
C
C
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

A
 

3
.3
.2
 

E
n
s
u
re
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
O
rd
e
rs
 

re
s
c
in
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
e
d
in
g
s
 

is
s
u
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

P
ro
c
e
e
d
in
g
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o
n
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
c
a
s
e
s
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

J
e
n
n
y
 G
o
o
d
e
s
 

A
n
n
 G
a
rr
e
tt
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

•
 

T
ra
c
k
e
r 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 

b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

 •
 

S
p
re
a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 

b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
L
A
C
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 •
 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 2
4
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

o
rd
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
o
k
e
d
. 
 I
n
it
ia
l 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 

w
it
h
 L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 w
it
h
 C
A
F
C
A
S
S
 a
n
d
 

c
o
u
rt
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
tt
e
r.
 

R
 

3
.3
.3
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
v
in
g
 C
a
re
  

p
o
lic
y
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 

N
E
E
T
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

Ia
in
 E
a
s
to
n
 

2
0
1
3
 

•
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 0
 –
 1
9
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 o
f 

A
 

55



1
8
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
s
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 

to
 t
a
c
k
le
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

s
h
o
w
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 e
a
rl
y
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 l
a
te
s
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 f
ig
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
N
E
E
T
 c
a
re
 

le
a
v
e
rs
 s
h
o
w
 a
 f
a
ll 
in
 N
E
E
T
 

c
a
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 5
2
%
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 t
o
 3
9
%
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 

4
2
%
 N
E
E
T
 c
a
re
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
. 

3
.3
.4
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 

c
a
re
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 f
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 

A
u
d
it
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

Ia
in
 E
a
s
to
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 
R
o
b
u
s
t 
d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
w
h
a
t 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
te
s
 ‘
s
u
it
a
b
le
’ 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
g
re
e
d
. 
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 3
1
s
t  M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
 a
n
d
 

d
a
ta
 t
ra
c
k
e
d
 t
h
e
re
a
ft
e
r 

A
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
N
E
E
T
 c
a
re
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 t
o
o
 h
ig
h
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
s
h
o
w
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
s
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 i
s
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 l
if
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
  
 

 T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c
le
a
re
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 ‘
s
ta
y
in
g
 p
u
t’
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
a
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
m
a
k
in
g
 a
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 i
n
to
 a
d
u
lt
h
o
o
d
. 

 4
. 
 W

o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 s
u
c
c
e
e
d
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

 1
. 
Im

p
le
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 f
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

56



1
9
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

  
  
a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

2
. 
D
e
liv
e
r 
a
n
 S
E
N
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 n
e
w
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
ff
e
r 
to
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

3
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
h
ic
h
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

4
.1
.1
 

S
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
s
 a
 

b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 

A
ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
g
re
e
in
g
 t
o
 

fo
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
C
iC
 /
 t
ru
s
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
  

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
3
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
v
e
r 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
p
o
rt
, 

a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 

G
 

4
.1
.2
 

R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 n
e
w
 

v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
  

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
3
 

P
h
a
s
e
 1
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
e
d
in
g
 t
o
 S
ta
g
e
 3
. 
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
s
ta
g
e
 2
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

G
 

4
.1
.3
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 o
f 

E
A
L
 /
 M
in
o
ri
ty
 E
th
n
ic
 N
e
w
 

A
rr
iv
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
it
y
 

O
u
tl
in
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
l 

a
n
d
 o
v
e
rs
ig
h
t 
o
f 
o
ff
e
r 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

E
a
rl
y
 d
ra
ft
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 A
D
 

–
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 

G
 

4
.1
.4
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

fo
r 
d
a
ta
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 D
M
T
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

th
e
 s
h
a
p
e
 o
f 
th
is
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 i
t 
w
ill
 

o
p
e
ra
te
 /
 s
it
 w
it
h
in
 

h
ie
ra
rc
h
y
. 
  

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

B
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 b
e
in
g
 

g
a
th
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 
 

A
w
a
it
in
g
 c
a
p
it
a
 o
n
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

A
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 

 D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

4
.2
.1
 

F
u
ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
E
N
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
fi
n
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
l 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 w
o
rk
s
tr
e
a
m
s
. 
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
b
e
in
g
 

fi
n
a
lis
e
d
. 
 B
a
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 w
o
rk
s
tr
e
a
m
s
 a
re
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 w
e
ll 

G
 

4
.2
.2
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
e
d
s
 

F
o
rm

a
l 
m
o
d
e
l 
to
 p
re
d
ic
t 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

S
o
m
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
a
ta
 

A
 

57



2
0
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo
r 

p
re
d
ic
ti
n
g
 f
u
tu
re
 S
E
N
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
s
  

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
5
 

y
e
a
rs
. 
  

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

o
n
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
 N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
a
in
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

4
.2
.3
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

re
v
is
e
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m

a
p
 o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
S
E
N
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
a
p
e
r 
o
n
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
s
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 a
lt
e
ri
n
g
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 E
R
P
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
ro
u
n
d
 a
re
a
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 E
R
P
 S
L
A
’s
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
. 
 

M
a
k
in
g
 g
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 

G
 

4
.2
.4
 

O
u
tl
in
e
 B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 

b
y
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

D
M
T
 a
g
re
e
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

fo
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
ra
ft
e
d
 a
n
d
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 b
e
in
g
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 

G
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 n
e
w
 i
d
e
a
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
S
E
N
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

 4
.3
.1
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
s
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

A
g
re
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 p
o
lit
ic
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
a
n
e
l 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

G
 

4
.3
.2
 

B
ro
k
e
ri
n
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

/ 
fr
e
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 c
it
y
 

C
a
s
e
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 

a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

fo
r 
fr
e
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 F
u
lb
ri
d
g
e
 t
o
 4
 

F
E
 u
s
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 b
a
s
ic
 n
e
e
d
s
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 
 D
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 f
o
r 
M
a
y
 d
e
a
d
lin
e
 

G
 

4
.3
.3
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
p
h
a
s
e
 2
 o
f 
IC
M
S
 

–
 C
a
p
it
a
 O
n
e
 f
o
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
ro
ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

m
o
d
u
le
s
 a
n
d
 s
w
it
c
h
 o
ff
 

o
f 
le
g
a
c
y
 E
&
R
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

•
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 m

o
d
u
le
s
 h
a
v
e
 

n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 a
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
: 
 

 ~
  
B
a
s
e
s
 

~
  
E
x
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 (
P
R
U
) 
 

~
  
C
h
ild
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
P
R
U
) 
 

~
  
P
u
ls
e
 (
A
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
d
a
ta
) 
 

G
 

58



2
1
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 m

o
d
u
le
s
 

a
re
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 i
n
 

M
a
y
: 
 

 ~
  
P
R
IM
E
 (
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
) 
 

~
  
S
S
R
S
 (
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
) 
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 m

a
in
 a
re
a
 o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 i
s
 

n
o
w
 C
h
ild
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
),
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 M
is
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 E
le
c
ti
v
e
 H
o
m
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
  

4
.3
.4
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 b
e
lo
w
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

m
in
im
u
m
 f
lo
o
r 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

S
o
ft
 /
 s
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 

s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
a
lli
n
g
 b
e
lo
w
 

fl
o
o
r 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

F
o
u
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

s
p
o
n
s
o
re
d
 a
c
a
d
e
m
y
 s
ta
tu
s
. 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 d
is
c
u
s
s
in
g
 f
in
a
l 

s
p
o
n
s
o
rs
. 

G
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 p
u
b
lic
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la
c
e
s
 

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
p
o
n
s
o
rs
 t
o
 d
ri
v
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

 5
. 
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 b
e
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 L
e
a
d
: 
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 a
n
d
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

 1
. 
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 r
o
u
te
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 o
f 
a
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
im
s
 

2
. 
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 a
re
 s
a
fe
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

3
. 
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 a
re
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t,
 r
e
s
p
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
 

B
y
 w
h
o
m
 

B
y
 w
h
e
n
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
A
G
 

5
.1
.1
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

A
ll 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
x
te
n
d
e
d
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

A
 n
e
w
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

G
 

59



2
2
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
C
S
 s
ta
ff
  

s
ta
ff
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

p
la
n
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 (
E
D
M
T
) 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
3
 P
D
R
 f
o
rm

 
th
a
t 
re
c
o
rd
s
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
. 
 T
h
e
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 w
ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 

to
 D
M
T
 o
n
 w
h
a
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
, 
w
h
a
t 

to
o
k
 p
la
c
e
, 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

u
p
o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
/s
k
ill
s
 

5
.1
.2
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
a
s
p
ir
a
n
t 

le
a
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

A
 c
o
u
rs
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
. 
 

D
e
le
g
a
te
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 

E
la
in
e
 

A
le
x
a
n
d
e
r 
 

C
o
lin
 W

ils
o
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
 “
S
te
p
s
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 

a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r”
 i
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 D
e
le
g
a
te
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 P
D
R
 

G
 

5
.1
.3
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
s
 e
a
s
ily
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 b
y
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 w
ill
 k
n
o
w
 w
h
a
t 

tr
a
in
in
g
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

th
e
m
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

it
 
~
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 

~
  
S
u
rv
e
y
 

E
la
in
e
 

A
le
x
a
n
d
e
r 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 
N
O
T
 

D
U
E
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 T
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 P
D
R
’s
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
th
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
u
rs
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

 5
.2
.1
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
D
is
c
lo
s
u
re
 a
n
d
 

B
a
rr
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
D
B
S
) 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
w
a
re
 

o
f 
th
e
 r
u
le
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

E
D
M
T
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 

H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 

th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
re
-c
h
e
c
k
s
 i
n
 

G
 

60



2
3
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
m
 

a
n
d
 a
re
 t
ra
c
k
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 

re
c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
o
lic
y
 

D
B
S
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

re
c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
re
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 

m
a
n
n
e
r 

a
 t
im
e
ly
 m

a
n
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
c
t 

u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

5
.2
.4
 

R
e
c
ru
it
 a
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

to
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
 e
th
n
ic
it
y
  
o
f 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
. 

T
a
rg
e
te
d
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 

2
0
%
 

E
la
in
e
 

A
le
x
a
n
d
e
r 

S
ta
rt
s
 i
n
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
3
 

In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 a
re
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

G
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 A
 s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 w
ill
 c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
e
 s
e
rv
e
. 
 S
ta
ff
 w
ill
 f
e
e
l 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
m
p
o
w
e
re
d
 

  5
.3
.1
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
D
R
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
. 
 T
e
a
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
e
-t
o
-o
n
e
s
 

a
re
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
e
v
e
ry
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 

•
 

A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 

re
g
u
la
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

re
fl
e
c
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 

g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 1
0
0
%
 

•
 

A
ll 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
in
u
te
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 

E
D
M
T
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

G
 

5
.3
.2
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 o
f 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

M
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

T
h
e
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 

re
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

 

G
 

5
.3
.3
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
v
e
ry
 l
e
a
v
e
r 

h
a
s
 a
n
 e
x
it
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

le
a
v
in
g
 t
re
n
d
s
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 

re
g
u
la
rl
y
  
to
 D
M
T
 

T
im
e
ly
 e
x
it
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 

th
a
t 
g
iv
e
 u
s
 a
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 t
u
rn
-

a
ro
u
n
d
 u
n
w
a
n
te
d
 

re
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
s
/L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

E
D
M
T
 

F
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
3
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 a
 r
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

G
 

61



2
4
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 D
e
li
ve
ry
 P
la
n
  
v3
.0
 (
M
a
y 
M
a
st
e
r)
*
 

fr
o
m
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 m

a
d
e
: 

 S
ta
ff
 w
ill
 f
e
e
l 
v
a
lu
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
p
tu
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 e
a
rl
y
 

  
 

62



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 8 

10 JUNE 2013 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council                                         
 
Contact Officer(s) – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer 
Contact Details – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME SCRUTINY TASK AND 
FINISH GROUP – PROGRESS REPORT 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To provide the Committee with an update on the work of the Children’s Services Improvement 

Programme Scrutiny Task and Finish Group and to seek the Committee’s approval to continue 
with the group for 2013/14. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee note the progress made to date by the Task and Finish Group. 
 

2.2 That the Committee agree to continue with the group for the 2013/14 municipal year. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 The Children’s Services Improvement Programme Scrutiny Task and Finish Group was 
established by the Committee in November 2011.  The purpose of the Group was to oversee 
the implementation of the Improvement Plan for Children’s Services. 
 

4.2 The current membership of the Group is: 
 

• Councillor Day (Chair) 

• Councillor Harper 

• Councillor Saltmarsh 

• Councillor Shabbir 

• Councillor Shaheed 

• Alistair Kingsley 
 

4.3 The work of the Group has been undertaken through the following activities: 
 

• Attending facilitated meetings with social care teams 

• Observation through office visits and panel activities 

• Presentation of anonymised recent case examples by social workers 

• Direct contact with Foster Carer Support Groups 

• Assessing and validating relevant performance data 

• Participation in Children’s Social Care training courses 

• Gaining an overview of Children’s Social Care Quality Assurance work 
 

4.4 The Group has met on 11 occasions.  Meetings have covered a wide area of issues, including: 
 

• Analysis of Re-referral Rates 

• Child and Adolescent Mental Health Update 

• Children Missing from Home and Care 

63



• Commissioning Intentions 

• Director’s Report 

• External Improvement Board Risk Register 

• Implementation of Access to Resource Panels 

• Liquidlogic Implementation 

• Multi-Agency Support Groups 

• Peer Safeguarding Healthcheck 

• Performance Reports 

• Quality Assurance 

• Senior Managers Case File Audit 

• Supervision Audit 

• Workforce Strategy 
 

4.5 A key part of the Group’s work has been to undertake visits to a number of the social care 
teams.  These have included: 
 

• Adoption 

• Cherry Lodge 

• Children’s Integrated Disability Service 

• Clare Lodge 

• Direct Intervention Service 

• Education for Children in Care 

• Family Support 

• Fostering 

• Integrated Safeguarding 

• Looked After Children 

• Referral and Assessment 

• The Manor 

• Youth Offending Service 
 

4.6 It is now proposed that the Group continues for another year to provide effective scrutiny to 
ensure that the good work around the improvement of Children’s Services is sustained. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

5.1 None 
 

  

64



 

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 9 

10 JUNE 2013 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Contact Officer – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – (01733) 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

REVIEW OF 2012/2013 AND WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2013/14 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To provide the Committee with a review of the work undertaken during 2012/13 and to develop 

a work programme for 2013/14. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee considers the 2012/2013 year in review and makes recommendations on 
the future monitoring of these items where necessary. 
 

2.2 That the Committee determines its priorities, and develops a work programme for the 
forthcoming year. 
 

3. REVIEW OF 2012/13 
 

3.1 The Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee was established by 
Council at its annual meeting on 18 May 2009.  During the year 2012/2013, the Committee 
considered the following issues: 
 
Information / Update 

• Overview of Children’s Services 

• Review of 2011/12 and Future Work Programme 

• The Changing Role of Local Authorities in Education 

• Inspire Peterborough Overview 

• Respite and Home Support Unit – Children with Disabilities (Cherry Lodge)  
 
Monitoring / Calling to Account 

• Children’s Services Improvement Plan – Progress Report 

• Children’s (Social Care) Services Statutory Complaints Process (Children act 1989) Annual 
Report 2011 

• Children’s Centres Update 

• Portfolio Progress report from Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and University 

• Presentation of 2012 Unvalidated Examination Results 

• Portfolio Progress report from Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 

• Improving Outcomes for Children with SEN 

• Outcome of Ofsted Inspection 

• Presentation of 2012 Validated Examination Results 
 
Policy  / Plans /  Consultation 

• Poverty Reduction Strategy and Action Plan 

• Fostering  - Action Plan 

• Children’s Joint Commissioning Board 

• Revision To Corporate Parenting Group  

65



 

• Prevention and Intervention Strategy 

• The Vision for Education in Peterborough 

• Presentation of Refreshed Improvement Delivery Plan 

• Budget 2013/14 and Medium Term Financial Plan 

• Peterborough Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 2011-2012 

• Appointment of Co-opted Member 

• Draft School Organisation Plan 2013-2018 – Delivering Local Places for Local Children 
 

No Call-in’s were received by this Committee during 2012/2013. 

3.2 For the information of the Committee, copies of the recommendations made during the year are 
attached at Appendix 1. 
 

4. WORK PROGRAMME 2013/14 
 

4.1 In accordance with the Constitution, the Committee is responsible for setting its own 
programme in line with the Council’s key priorities and the Committee’s remit. 
 

4.2 The Committee’s remit is: 
 
To review and scrutinise the delivery of the Sustainable Community Strategy priority of creating 
opportunities, tackling inequalities.  This will include reviewing and scrutinising the performance 
of other public bodies in their activities and performance in the delivery of Single Delivery Plan 
targets. 
 
Hold the Executive to account for the discharge of functions in the following ways: 
 

• by exercising the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet 
implemented by the Executive or key decisions which have been delegated to an officer.   

• by scrutinising Key Decisions which the Executive is planning to take, as set out in the 
Forward Plan 

• by scrutinising Executive decisions after they have been implemented, as part of a wider 
policy review. 

 
To review and scrutinise the planning, decisions, policy development, service provision and 
performance relating to the following service areas: 
 

• Adult Learning and Skills 

• Children’s Services 

• Education 

• Safeguarding Children  
 
To assist and advise the Council and the Executive in the development of its budget and policy 
framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues in relation to the terms of reference of the 
committee. 
 
Make recommendations to the Executive and/or Council arising from overview and scrutiny 
activity. 
 
Establish ad-hoc Task and Finish Groups to investigate specific topics on a time-limited basis. 
 

4.3 A draft work programme which shows the items which are currently scheduled along with items 
carried over from last year is attached at Appendix 2. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

5.1 Minutes of the Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee held on 11 
June, 23 July, 10 September, 12 November 2012 and 7 January, 6 February, 11 March and 22 

66



 
April 2013. 
 

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix 1 - Recommendations made during 2012/2013 
Appendix 2 – Draft Work Programme 2013/14 

  

67



68

This page is intentionally left blank



C
R
E
A
T
IN
G
 O
P
P
O
R
T
U
N
IT
IE
S
 A
N
D
 T
A
C
K
L
IN
G
 I
N
E
Q
U
A
L
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX

 1
 

R
E
C
O

M
M

E
N
D
A
T
IO

N
S
 M

A
D
E
 D

U
R
IN

G
 2

0
1
1
-2

0
1
2
 

M
E
E
T
IN

G
 D

A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M

 
 

R
E
C
O

M
M

E
N
D
A
T
IO

N
 

R
E
F
E
R
R
E
D
 

T
O

 
R
E
S
P
O

N
S
E
 T

O
 R

E
C
O

M
M

E
N
D
A
T
IO

N
S
 

1
2
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 R
e
v
is

io
n
 t
o
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
a
re

n
ti
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t:
 

 I.
 

 T
h
e
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 &
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 c
o
v
e
rs
 t
h
e
 

ro
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
t 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

n
e
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 

 II
. 

T
h
e
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 &
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
a
n
 A
ll 

P
a
rt
y
 P
o
lic
y
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 

o
n
c
e
 a
 y
e
a
r 
to
 c
o
v
e
r 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
. 

S
u
e
 W
e
s
tc
o
tt
 
T
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 P
a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 I
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 T
h
e
 I
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 6
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 a
 1
0
 m
in
u
te
 

s
lo
t 
fo
r 
n
e
w
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
t 
A
ll 

P
a
rt
y
 P
o
lic
y
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
. 
  

 T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 r
o
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
u
r 
ti
m
e
s
 a
 y
e
a
r 

 

69



70

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
  
1
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
 

 D
R
A
F
T
 C
R
E
A
T
IN
G
 O
P
P
O
R
T
U
N
IT
IE
S
 A
N
D
 T
A
C
K
L
IN
G
 I
N
E
Q
U
A
L
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 P
la
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

 T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
la
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 
 T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
: 
A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 /
 W

e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 
R
e
p
o
rt
 
fr
o
m
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
T
a
s
k
 
a
n
d
 
F
in
is
h
 
G
ro
u
p
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 

 T
o
 
s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 
th
e
 
w
o
rk
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
L
o
u
is
e
 T
y
e
rs
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 1
0
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

 2
3
 M
a
y
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

3
0
 M
a
y
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

    

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 F
u
tu
re
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 a
n
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 

 

71



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
  
1
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

  
 

 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

G
ro
u
p
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

 

P
o
v
e
rt
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
  

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 P
o
v
e
rt
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

 

In
s
p
ir
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
fo
rm
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

In
s
p
ir
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
je
c
t 
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
u
li
e
 R
iv
e
tt
 

 

U
p
d
a
te
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 N
E
E
T
’s
 (
1
6
 t
o
 1
8
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 n
o
t 
in
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
T
ra
in
in
g
) 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
  
th
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 N
E
E
T
’s
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

 2
2
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

 4
 J
u
ly
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

1
1
 J
u
ly
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

  
 

 

9
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

 2
2
 A
u
g
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

2
9
 A
u
g
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 b
o
a
rd
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 (
P
S
C
B
) 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
  

 

 

72



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
  
1
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

T
h
e
 V
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 –
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
2
2
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

 
 

 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 
1
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

2
4
 O
c
t 
D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

3
1
 O
c
t 
F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
 U
n
v
a
li
d
a
te
d
 E
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
2
 e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
s
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

 
 

 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 
 6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

1
6
 D
e
c
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

2
3
 D
e
c
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  
 

 
 

 
 

 

73



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
  
1
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

8
 o
r 
2
0
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

(J
o
in
t 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 

th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
) 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 M

e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
/S
te
v
e
n
 P
il
s
w
o
rt
h
 

 

 
 

 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
 V
a
li
d
a
te
d
 E
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
2
 e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
s
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

T
a
c
k
li
n
g
 P
o
v
e
rt
y
 I
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 –
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 /
 W

e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

 

1
7
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

2
7
 F
e
b
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

6
 M
a
rc
h
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

 
 

 

         

74



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
  
1
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
3
 

 It
e
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 i
n
: 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

 It
e
m
 

R
e
fe
rr
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

C
la
re
 L
o
d
g
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

1
2
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 -
 S
p
u
rg
e
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 B
a
rn
a
rd
o
s
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 a
 

o
n
e
 y
e
a
r 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
–
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

 

2
3
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A
ft
e
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

 
R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
  
J
e
a
n
 I
m
ra
y
 

C
h
ild
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
  

 
R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W
e
lb
o
u
rn
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 C
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 C
a
re
 P
le
d
g
e
 

 
R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 U
p
d
a
te
 

 
 

A
d
u
lt
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 U
p
d
a
te
 

 
 

  

75



76

This page is intentionally left blank



CREATING OPPORUTNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 10 

10 JUNE 2013 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE KEY DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny 

Committee outlining the content of the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  
The Notice contains those key decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the 
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take. No new key decisions have been added to 
the list. 
 

3.2 The information in the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to 
request further information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

3.4 
 

As the Notice is published fortnightly any version of the Notice published after dispatch of this 
agenda will be tabled at the meeting. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Notice of Intention to 
Take Key Decisions. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 

 Appendix 1 – Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 
 
 

77



78

This page is intentionally left blank



  
P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
  

C
O
U
N
C
IL
’S
 N
O
T
IC
E
 O
F
 

IN
T
E
N
T
IO
N
 T
O
 T
A
K
E
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 
   

P
U
B
L
IS
H
E
D
: 
 1
6
 M
A
Y
 2
0
1
3
 

APPENDIX 1 

79



 

N
O
T
IC
E
 O
F
 I
N
T
E
N
T
IO
N
 T
O
 T
A
K
E
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

A
B

 

In
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 2
8
 d
a
y
s
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 d
a
te
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 n
o
ti
c
e
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' o
n
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 n
a
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
is
 s
h
o
w
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
, 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r’
s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
. 
If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 i
t’
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 a
s
 l
is
te
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

C
llr
 C
e
re
s
te
 (
L
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 L
e
e
 (
D
e
p
u
ty
 l
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 S
c
o
tt
; 
C
llr
 H
o
ld
ic
h
; 
C
llr
 H
ill
e
r;
 C
llr
 S
e
a
to
n
; 
C
llr
 F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
: 
C
llr
 D
a
lt
o
n
: 
C
llr
 W

a
ls
h
. 
 

 T
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 m

o
n
th
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 n
o
ti
c
e
 

s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
te
m
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
in
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 N
o
ti
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 N
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 
S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 

H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r.
d
a
y
n
e
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 

te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
4
7
. 

 W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
t 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 l
is
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 m
e
d
ia
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
, 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
o
m
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l,
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
lly
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
a
re
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
 t
h
is
 a
p
p
lie
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
A
 f
o
rm

a
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
o
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
it
, 

in
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 2
8
 c
le
a
r 
d
a
y
s
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ri
v
a
te
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
) 
(M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
) 
(E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
1
2
. 
 

 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 (
u
n
le
s
s
 a
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
in
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
).
 

 Y
o
u
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
, 
o
r 
o
b
ta
in
 e
x
tr
a
c
ts
 f
ro
m
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
e
r 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
y
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 

p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 o
r 
p
o
s
ta
g
e
. 
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
ro
m
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 
S
e
n
io
r 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
),
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 

a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r.
d
a
y
n
e
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
4
7
. 
F
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
. 
 

 A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 
w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
/e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 I
f 
y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 n
o
ti
c
e
. 

  

80



 

  

P
R
E
V
IO
U
S
L
Y
 A
D
V
E
R
T
IS
E
D
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 

O
P
E
N
 T
O
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
  

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

S
U
B
M
IT
T
E
D
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 (
IF
 A
N
Y
 

O
T
H
E
R
 T
H
A
N
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 R
E
P
O
R
T
) 

M
o
y
’s
 E
n
d
 S
ta
n
d
 

D
e
m
o
li
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
3
A
P
R
/1
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

D
e
m
o
lit
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 M
o
y
’s
 E
n
d
 

S
ta
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

S
a
le
 o
f 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 

C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
3
J
U
L
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 

to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

s
a
le
 o
f 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r,
 W

a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 &
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

81



 

 R
o
ll
in
g
 S
e
le
c
t 
L
is
t 
- 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 

A
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
1
J
U
L
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
fo
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
fo
s
te
ri
n
g
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
la
re
 L
o
d
g
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
3
N
O
V
1
2
/0
6
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
C
la
re
 

L
o
d
g
e
 S
e
c
u
re
 U
n
it
. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
L
is
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
3
N
O
V
1
2
/0
8
 

C
re
a
te
 a
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
L
is
t 
fo
r 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

u
n
it
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
u
tu
re
 o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 P
la
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
3
N
O
V
1
2
/0
9
 

T
o
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 o
f 

P
la
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
  

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
. 

T
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
 k
e
y
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

82



 

 C
a
re
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
a
ir
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
8
D
E
C
1
2
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 

ra
te
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 

fa
c
ili
ty
 g
ra
n
t 
w
o
rk
. 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
o
ile
t 

a
n
d
 w
a
s
h
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
P
e
te
r 

H
il
le
r 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

N
/A
 

S
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

R
u
s
s
 C
a
rr
 

C
a
re
 &
 R
e
p
a
ir
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
6
4
 

ru
s
s
.c
a
rr
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

4
1
3
 B
u
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
7
D
E
C
1
2
/0
1
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
R
o
u
te
 

4
1
3
 (
M
a
x
e
y
 t
o
 C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
) 

fr
o
m
 1
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
P
e
te
r 

H
il
le
r 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
7
1
 

m
a
rk
.s
p
e
e
d
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
4
J
A
N
1
3
/0
2
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

Y
E
S
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

F
o
u
r 
w
e
e
k
 p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

  

C
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
 P
a
lm
e
r 

C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 c
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
.p
a
lm
e
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
le
tt
o
n
 P
a
rk
w
a
y
 J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

1
7
 t
o
 2
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
4
J
A
N
1
3
/0
7
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw
a
rd
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
 i
n
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
w
a
rd
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
s
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
P
e
te
r 

H
il
le
r,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

D
a
v
id
 S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
7
1
 

m
a
rk
.s
p
e
e
d
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

83



 

S
a
le
 o
f 
C
ra
ig
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
 -
 K
E
Y
/2
5
M
A
R
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 
la
n
d
 

k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 C
ra
ig
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

D
a
v
id
 G
ra
y
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
1
 

d
a
v
id
.g
ra
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

S
h
o
rt
 B
re
a
k
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
8
A
P
R
1
3
/0
1
 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

fo
r 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 2
0
1
3
-2
0
2
3
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
8
A
P
R
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 

b
id
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

fo
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
P
e
te
r 

H
il
le
r 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

A
n
d
y
 T
a
tt
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
4
6
9
 

a
n
d
y
.t
a
tt
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

G
la
d
s
to
n
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
o
n
to
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 o
f 

th
e
 G
la
d
s
to
n
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
8
A
P
R
1
3
/0
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
G
la
d
s
to
n
e
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 o
f 

th
e
 G
la
d
s
to
n
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lic
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

84



 

 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 -
 

S
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/3
0
M
A
Y
1
3
/0
2
 

T
o
 d
e
c
id
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  o
f 
O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

Y
e
s
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
ro
s
s
-g
ro
u
p
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
. 

  

M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
7
1
 

m
a
rk
.s
p
e
e
d
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

E
n
e
rg
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
(E
n
P
C
) 
- 

K
E
Y
/3
0
M
A
Y
/1
3
/0
3
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
r.
 U
ff
. 

M
a
rc
o
 C
e
re
s
te
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

  

J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r-
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
3
9
8
 

jo
h
n
.h
a
rr
is
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

85



 C
H
IE
F
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
'S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

H
R
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
, 
T
ra
in
in
g
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 R
e
w
a
rd
 &
 P
o
lic
y
 

 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r'
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
IC
T
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

W
a
s
te
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
h
a
re
d
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
T
ru
s
t 
C
lie
n
t 

 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
’ 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
a
y
a
rd
 P
la
c
e
, 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1
F
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
, 
F
a
m
ily
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 &
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 &
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 (
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 &
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 D
e
liv
e
ry
, 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
) 
  

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
C
C
T
V
, 
C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
M
a
rk
e
ts
 &
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
T
ra
d
in
g
, 
T
o
u
ri
s
m
) 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
C
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
, 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
F
in
a
n
c
e
) 
 

 A
D
U
L
T
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 (
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
&
 C
a
re
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t;
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 H
IV
/A
ID
S
; 
R
e
g
u
la
te
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 (
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
; 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
, 
P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 &
 S
e
n
s
o
ry
 I
m
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t;
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
) 

86



 Q
u
a
lit
y
, 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
; 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
; 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 &
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
; 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
y
s
te
m
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t;
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t)
 

 

87



88

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meeting held on 22 April 2013
	5 The Impact of Welfare Reform
	5. Appendix 1 - PCAS Briefing Document - 130610 - CO&TISC

	6 Children's Play Services
	6. Appendix 1 - Play Centre Summary Review - 130610 - CO&TISC
	6. Appendix 2 -  Protocols to support the closure process - 130610 - CO&TISC

	7 Children's Services Improvement Programme
	7. Appendix 1 - Children's Services Delivery Plan v3 - 130610 - CO&TISC

	8 Children's Services Improvement Programme Scrutiny Task And Finish Group - Progress Report
	9 Review Of 2012/2013 And Work Programme For 2013/14
	9. Appendix 1 - Recommendations from 2012-2013  -  130610 -CO&TISC
	9. Appendix 2 -  Work Programme 2013 -14 -130610 - CO&TISC

	10 Notice of Intention to take Key Decisions
	10. Appendix 1 - Intention to Take Key Decisions - 130610 - CO&TISC


